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CHAIRMAN MESSAGE
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Dear Shareholders,

I am excited to announce a significant milestone in 
our product development journey. We have recently 
added four new super specialty products to our 
por�olio, further strengthening our posi�on in the 
global market. These addi�ons are not just incremen-
tal; they represent a strategic leap into highly special-
ized areas with limited compe��on.
We have successfully acquired a new manufacturing 
facility located at B-91 Lote MIDC. This strategic 
acquisi�on marks a significant expansion of our 
produc�on capabili�es and underscores our commit-
ment to mee�ng the increasing demand for our

The Company have recently embarked on a major ini�a�ve by proceeding with solar power 
projects across our facili�es. This strategic move is set to significantly transform our energy 
consump�on and produc�on costs. By integra�ng solar power into our opera�ons, we are 
poised to reduce our electricity charges by up to 80%. This drama�c reduc�on is not only a 
substan�al financial benefit but also represents a significant step towards more sustainable and 
eco-friendly prac�ces. The adop�on of solar energy aligns with our commitment to reducing our 
environmental footprint and inves�ng in green technologies.

Also, we have recently par�cipated in the China Inter Dye 2024 exhibi�on, a premier global 
event in the dyestuff industry. Our involvement in this pres�gious trade fair has yielded remark-
able outcomes and reflects the growing interna�onal recogni�on of our company’s innova�ons 
and capabili�es.

At the event, our products garnered significant a�en�on from industry experts, clients, and 
compe�tors alike. We were honoured to receive major recogni�on for our advanced technology 
and superior product quality. This acknowledgment not only highlights our posi�on as a leader 
in the global dyestuff market but also validates our ongoing efforts to push the boundaries of 
innova�on and excellence.

products. The new facility is designed to enhance our manufacturing capacity by an impressive 
1500 metric tons of dyestuff per annum. This expansion is not merely about increasing num-
bers; it represents a substan�al boost to our opera�onal efficiency and scalability. With this 
addi�onal capacity, we are well-posi�oned to support our growing customer base and respond 
more effec�vely to market opportuni�es.

Chairman & Managing Director
Saurabh Deepak Arora
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Furthermore, our successful par�cipa�on has resulted in securing substan�al new orders from 
China. This development represents a significant expansion of our market presence in one of 
the world’s largest and most compe��ve markets. The orders we have received will contribute 
meaningfully to our revenue and establish a stronger foothold for our products in the interna-
�onal arena.

As we move forward, our commitment to innova�on, cost-efficiency, and global outreach will 
drive our efforts to deliver excep�onal value. We deeply appreciate your support and confi-
dence in our vision. Together, we look forward to a future of shared success and prosperity.

Chairman & Managing Director
Saurabh Deepak Arora
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OUR PRODUCTS

ACID BLUE 9 -FD & C BLUE NO. 1 
& LIQUID BLUE 9

ACID RED 33 - D&C RED 33

ACID VIOLET 43-EXT D&C VIOLET NO.2

ACID YELLOW 23 LIQUID
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ACID GREEN 25 - D&C GREEN 

ACID VIOLET 17 & ACID VIOLET 49 

ACID RED 52 – ACID SULPHO 
RHODAMINE WS
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EXHIBITION IN CHINA
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NOTICE
OF 27TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT THE 27TH (TWENTY-SEVEN) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE 
MEMBERS OF DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITEDWILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY, SEPTEMBER 25, 
2024,AT 04.30 P.M. (IST), THROUGH VIDEO CONFERENCING (“VC”)/OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL 
MEANS (“OAVM”) TO TRANSACT THE FOLLOWING BUSINESSES:

To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Trishla Baid Arora (DIN: 07063446), who retires by 
rotation in accordance with Articles of Association and being eligible, offers herself for re-ap-
pointment.

1. Adop�on of Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial 
Year
    ended March 31, 2024: -
    To receive, consider and adopt:     

2. Re-appointment of Director: - 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolu-
tion as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 141, 142 and other applicable 
provisions, if any, of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or reenactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), M/s.Mittal & Associates(Firm Registration No. 106456W), Chartered Accoun-
tants be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company, in place of the 
retiring Statutory Auditor, M/s. ADV & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration 
No. 128045W) to hold office for a period of five year from the conclusion of 27th (Twen-
ty-Seven) Annual General Meeting of the Company till the conclusion of 32nd (Thirty-Two) 
Annual General Meeting of the Company on such remuneration plus reimbursement ofout of 
pocket expenses and applicable taxes,as recommended by the Audit Committeeand 
approved by the Board of Directors of theCompany from time to time”

3. Appointment of Auditor: -

ORDINARY BUSINESS

theAudited StandaloneFinancial Statements of the Company for the financial year  ended 
on March 31, 2024 including the Audited Balance Sheet as on March 31, 2024 and the 
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports 
of the Directors and Auditors thereon; and

theAudited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year 
ended on March 31, 2024 including the Audited Consolidated Balance Sheet as on March 
31, 2024 and the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that 
date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

a.

b.



By Order of the Board of Directors
For Deepak Chemtex Limited

sd/-
Sonam Sharma 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer 

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Date:  August 29, 2024
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NOTES – FORMING PART OF THE NOTICE

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (‘MCA’) vide its General Circular No. 
14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, the General Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Gen-
eral Circular No. 22/2020 dated June 15, 2020, the General Circular No. 33/2020 dated Septem-
ber 28, 2020, General Circular No. 39/2020 dated December 31, 2020, the General Circular No. 
10/2021 dated June 23, 2021, General Circular No. 20/2021 dated December 08, 2021, General 
Circular No. 02/2022 dated May 05, 2022, General Circular No. 11/2022 dated December 28, 
2022 and General Circular No 09/2023 dated September 25, 2023, and other circulars issued in 
this respect (‘MCA Circulars’) allowed, inter-alia, conduct of AGM through Video Conferencing/ 
Other Audio-Visual Means (‘VC/ OAVM’) facility on or before September 30, 2024. The Securi-
�es and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’) also vide its SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/ 
CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022, SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated 
January 05, 2023 and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/167 October 07, 
2023 (‘SEBI Circulars’) has provided certain relaxa�ons from compliance with certain provisions 
of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015 (‘SEBI Lis�ng Regu-
la�ons’). In compliance with these Circulars, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and 
the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, the 27thAGM of the Company is being conducted through VC/ 
OAVM facility.

1.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Man-
agement and Administra�on) Rules, 2014, as amended (‘Management Rules’), Secretarial Stan-
dard-2 (‘SS-2’) on General Mee�ngs and Regula�on 44 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons read with 
MCA Circulars, as amended, the Company through Na�onal Securi�es Depository Limited 
(‘NSDL’) will be providing facili�es in respect of: 

(a) vo�ng through remote e-vo�ng; 

(b) par�cipa�on in the AGM through VC/ OAVM facility; 

(c) e-vo�ng during the AGM

2.

In terms of the MCA Circulars, physical a�endance of Members has been dispensed with and, 
therefore, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies. Accordingly, the facility of 
appointment of proxies by Members under Sec�on 105 of the Act will not be available for the 
27th AGM. Hence, the Proxy Form and A�endance Slip including Route Map are not annexed to 
this No�ce.

4.

In pursuance of Sec�on 112 and Sec�on 113 of the Act, representa�ves of the Members may be 
appointed for the purpose of vo�ng through remote e-Vo�ng through Board Resolu�on/ Power 
of A�orney/ Authority Le�er, etc., for par�cipa�on in the 27thAGM through VC/ OAVM facility 
and e-Vo�ng during the 27thAGM. The said Resolu�on/Authoriza�on shall be sent to the Scru�-
nizer by email through its registered email address to csnikitakedia@gmail.comwith a copy 
marked to evo�ng@nsdl.com.

5.

The deemed venue for the 27thAGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company.3.
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A�endance of the Members par�cipa�ng in the 27thAGM through VC/ OAVM facility using their 
login creden�als shall be counted for the purpose of reckoning the quorum under Sec�on 103 
of the Act.

6.

In case of joint holders a�ending the Mee�ng, the Member whose name appears as the first 
holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the Company will be en�tled to 
vote. 

8.

In compliance with the aforesaid MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars, No�ce of the AGM along 
with the Annual Report 2023-24 is being sent only through electronic mode to those Members 
whose email addresses are registered with the Depositories/Registrar and Share Transfer Agent 
(‘RTA’).

9.

The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and a�er the sched-
uled �me of the commencement of the Mee�ng by following the procedure men�oned in the 
No�ce. The facility of par�cipa�on at the AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 
1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large Shareholders (Share-
holders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Ins�tu�onal Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Commi�ee, Nomina�on and Remunera-
�on Commi�ee and Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to 
a�end the AGM without restric�on on account of first come first served basis. 

7.

In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, 
the No�ce calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.deepak-
chemtex.in. The No�ce can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE 
Limited at www.bseindia.comand the AGM No�ce is also available on the website of NSDL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Vo�ng facility) i.e. www.evo�ng.nsdl.com

10.

Physical copy of the Annual Report 2023-24 (including the No�ce of the 27thAGM) shall be sent 
only to those Members who specifically request for the same. Accordingly, Members who wish 
to obtain a physical copy of the Annual Report for the FY 2023-24, may write to the Company at 
cs@deepakchemtex.in, reques�ng for the same by providing their holding details and DP ID and 
Client ID/Folio No.

11.

A�en�on of the members is invited to the provisions of Sec�on 124(6) of the Companies Act, 
2013 with Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and 
Refund) Rules, 2016 amended from �me to �me (“IEPF Rules”), which inter alia requires the 
Company to transfer the equity shares, on which the dividend has remained unpaid and 
unclaimed for a con�nuous period of seven years, to IEPF. The said Shares, once transferred to 
IEPF can be claimed a�er following due procedure prescribed under the IEPF Rules.

12.

All documents referred to in the accompanying no�ce and the explanatory statements are open 
for inspec�on by the members at the registered office of the Company on all working days 
during 11:00 AM to 1:00 PM. Members can request the same by sending an email to cs@deepa-
kchemtex.in �ll the date of the AGM.

13.

Page 12



Members who would like to express their views/ ask ques�ons during the AGM may register 
themselves as a speaker by sending their request in advance at least seven days before the 
AGM to cs@deepakchemtex.in. Members who do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 
queries may send their queries, men�oning the name, securi�es demat account number/ folio 
number, email id, mobile number to cs@deepakchemtex.inin advance at least 7 days prior to 
mee�ng. 

14.

Only those Members who have registered themselves as a speaker will be allowed to express 
their views/ ask ques�ons during the AGM once the floor is open for shareholder queries. The 
Company reserves the right to restrict the number of speakers and number of ques�ons 
depending on the availability of �me for the AGM.

15.

Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 108 of the Act read with Management Rules and Regula-
�on 44 of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and in terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/ CMD/-
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 09, 2020 in rela�on to e-Vo�ng facility provided by listed 
en��es and the MCA Circulars, the Company is providing facility of remote e-Vo�ng to its Mem-
bers in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. 

The remote e-Vo�ng period begins on Sunday, September 22, 2024 at 09:00 A.M. (IST) and ends 
on Tuesday, September 24, 2024 at 05:00 P.M. (IST). The remote e-Vo�ng module shall be 
disabled by NSDL for vo�ng therea�er. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of 
Members/ Beneficial Owners as on the cut-off date i.e., Wednesday, September 18, 2024may 
cast their vote electronically.

The vo�ng right of member shall be in propor�on to their share in the paid-up equity share 
capital of the Company as on the cut-off dateWednesday, September 18, 2024. Once the vote 
on a resolu�on is cast by the Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. A 
person who is not a Member as on the cut-off date should treat this No�ce of AGM for informa-
�on purpose only. 

The facility for vo�ng through e-vo�ng system shall also be made available during the AGM. 
Members a�ending the AGM who have not cast their vote by remote e-vo�ng shall be eligible 
to cast their vote through e-vo�ng during the AGM. Members who have voted through remote 
e-vo�ng shall be eligible to a�end the AGM, however, they shall not be eligible to vote at the 
AGM. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to access the remote e-vo�ng 
facility provided by the Company through NSDL e-vo�ng system at h�ps://www.evo�ng.ns-
dl.com/

The Board of Directors has appointed Ms. Nikita Kedia, proprietor of NKM & Associates, Prac�c-
ing Company Secretary, as the Scru�nizer for scru�nizing the process of remote e-Vo�ng and 
e-Vo�ng during the Mee�ng in a fair and transparent manner. 

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

Procedure for remote e-vo�ng and e-vo�ng during the AGM:
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The Results of remote e-Vo�ng and vo�ng at the Mee�ng shall be declared by the Chairman or 
by any other director or Company Secretary duly authorised in this regard. The Results declared 
along with the Report of the Scru�nizer shall be placed on the Company’s website and also be 
displayed on the No�ce Board of the Company at its Registered Office and on the website of 
NSDL h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/immediately a�er the results are declared and simultane-
ously communicated to the Stock Exchanges in compliance with Regula�on 44(3) of the SEBI 
Lis�ng Regula�ons.

21.

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Vo�ng system?
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Vo�ng system consists of “Two Steps” which are men-
�oned below:

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Vo�ng system
A) Login method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for Individual shareholders holding securi-
�es in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Companies, 
Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat 
account maintained with Depositories and Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are advised to 
update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in order to access e-Vo�ng facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode is given below:

NSDLe-Vo�ng Instruc�ons:

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with 
NSDL.

Exis�ng IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com either on a 
Personal Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services 
home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under 
“Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ sec�on, this 
will prompt you to enter your exis�ng User ID and 
Password. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be 
able to see e-Vo�ng services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Vo�ng” under e-Vo�ng 
services and you will be able to see e-Vo�ng page. Click 
on company name or e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Vo�ng website of 
NSDL for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng 
period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during the 
mee�ng.

1.
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Type of shareholders Login Method

If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, op�on to 
register is available at h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com.  
Select “Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirec-
tReg.jsp
Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.ns-
dl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, 
click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on. A new screen will open. 
You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen 
digit demat account number hold with NSDL), Pass-
word/OTP and a Verifica�on Code as shown on the 
screen. A�er successful authen�ca�on, you will be 
redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see 
e-Vo�ng page. Click on company name or e-Vo�ng 
service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to 
e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for cas�ng your vote during 
the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual mee�ng & 
vo�ng during the mee�ng.
Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL 
Mobile App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR 
code men�oned below for seamless vo�ng experience.

2.

3.

4.

Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, 
can login through their exis�ng user id and password. 
Op�on will be made available to reach e-Vo�ng page 
without any further authen�ca�on. The users to login 
Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website ww-
w.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System 
Myeasi Tab and then user your exis�ng my easi user-
name & password.

1.Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with 
CDSL
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Type of shareholders Login Method

A�er successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able 
to see the e-Vo�ng op�on for eligible companies where 
the evo�ng is in progress as per the informa�on provid-
ed by company. On clicking the evo�ng op�on, the user 
will be able to see e-Vo�ng page of the e-Vo�ng service 
provider for cas�ng your vote during the remote e-Vot-
ing period or joining virtual mee�ng & vo�ng during 
the mee�ng. Addi�onally, there is also links provided to 
access the system of all e-Vo�ng Service Providers, so 
that the user can visit the e-Vo�ng service providers’ 
website directly.
If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, op�on to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
click on registra�on op�on.
Alterna�vely, the user can directly access e-Vo�ng page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from 
a e-Vo�ng link available on www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authen�cate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. A�er successful authen�ca�on, user 
will be able to see the e-Vo�ng op�on where the evot-
ing is in progress and also able to directly access the 
system of all e-Vo�ng Service Providers.

2.

3.

4.

You can also login using the login creden�als of your 
demat account through your Depository Par�cipant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Vo�ng facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Vo�ng op�on. Click 
on e-Vo�ng op�on, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL 
Depository site a�er successful authen�ca�on, wherein 
you can see e-Vo�ng feature. Click on company name or 
e-Vo�ng service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redi-
rected to e-Vo�ng website of NSDL for cas�ng your vote 
during the remote e-Vo�ng period or joining virtual 
mee�ng & vo�ng during the mee�ng.

Individual Shareholders (holding 
securi�es in demat mode) login 
through their depository par�ci-
pants
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 
User ID and Forget Password op�on available at abovemen�oned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode for any technical issues 
related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with 
NSDL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evo�ng@nsdl.comor 
call at 022 - 4886 7000

Individual Shareholders holding 
securi�es in demat mode with 
CDSL

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evot-
ing@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800-21-09911

Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

Your User ID is:

a) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with NSDL.

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and 
Client ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******.

B) Login Method for e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode and shareholders holding securi�es in physical 
mode.

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Vo�ng website?

Visit the e-Vo�ng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 
URL: h�ps://www.evo�ng.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 
Once the home page of e-Vo�ng system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ sec�on.
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verifica-
�on Code as shown on the screen.
Alterna�vely, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
h�ps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your exis�ng IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
a�er using your log-in creden�als, click on e-Vo�ng and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your 
vote electronically.
Your User ID details are given below:

1.

2.

3.

3.
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b) For Members who hold shares 
in demat account with CDSL.

16 Digit Beneficiary ID
For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12**************

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form.

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company
For example if folio number is 001*** and 
EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 101456001***

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:
   a) If you are already registered for e-Vo�ng, then you can user your exis�ng password to login 
        and cast your vote.

   b) If you are using NSDL e-Vo�ng system for the first �me, you will need to retrieve the ‘ini�al 
        password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘ini�al password’, you   
        need to enter the ‘ini�al password’ and the system will force you to change your password.
   c) How to retrieve your ‘ini�al password’?
        (i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘ini�al    
             password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
             NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the a�achment i.e. a .pdf file. Open 
             the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, 
             last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. 
             The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘ini�al password’. 
        (ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps men�oned below in process for 
              those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.

5.

If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Ini�al password” or have forgo�en your 
password:
   a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 
       with NSDL or CDSL) op�on available on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.
   b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) op�on available  
        on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com.
   c) If you are s�ll unable to get the password by aforesaid two op�ons, you can send a request 
       at evo�ng@nsdl.commen�oning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
       name and your registered address etc.
   d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for cas�ng the votes on 
       the e-Vo�ng system of NSDL.

6.

A�er entering your password, �ck on Agree to “Terms and Condi�ons” by selec�ng on the 
check box.
Now, you will have to click on “Login” bu�on.
A�er you click on the “Login” bu�on, Home page of e-Vo�ng will open.

7.

8.
9.
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A�er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose vo�ng cycle and General Mee�ng is in ac�ve status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng 
period and cas�ng your vote during the General Mee�ng. For joining virtual mee�ng, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Mee�ng”.
 
Now you are ready for e-Vo�ng as the Vo�ng page opens.
 
Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�ons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.
 
Upon confirma�on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op�on on the 
confirma�on page.
 
Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority le�er etc. with 
a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scru�nizer by e-mail to csnikitakedia@gmail.comwith a copy marked to evo�ng@nsdl.com 
Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolu�on / Power of A�orney / Authority Le�er etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolu�on / 
Authority Le�er" displayed under "e-Vo�ng" tab in their login.
 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confiden�al. Login to the e-vo�ng website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful a�empts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op�on avail-
able on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
 
In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-vo�ng user manual for Shareholders available at the download sec�on of 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Sarita Mote at 
evo�ng@nsdl.com

1.

2.

3.

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Mee�ng on NSDL e-Vo�ng system.
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Mee�ng on NSDL e-Vo�ng system?

General Guidelines for shareholders
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A�er successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you 
are holding shares and whose vo�ng cycle and General Mee�ng is in ac�ve status.

Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Vo�ng 
period and cas�ng your vote during the General Mee�ng. For joining virtual mee�ng, you need 
to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join Mee�ng”.
 
Now you are ready for e-Vo�ng as the Vo�ng page opens.
 
Cast your vote by selec�ng appropriate op�ons i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number 
of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when 
prompted.
 
Upon confirma�on, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed. 
 
You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print op�on on the 
confirma�on page.
 
Once you confirm your vote on the resolu�on, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.

Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 
scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolu�on/ Authority le�er etc. with 
a�ested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to 
the Scru�nizer by e-mail to csnikitakedia@gmail.comwith a copy marked to evo�ng@nsdl.com 
Ins�tu�onal shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 
Resolu�on / Power of A�orney / Authority Le�er etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolu�on / 
Authority Le�er" displayed under "e-Vo�ng" tab in their login.
 
It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost 
care to keep your password confiden�al. Login to the e-vo�ng website will be disabled upon 
five unsuccessful a�empts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go 
through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” op�on avail-
able on www.evo�ng.nsdl.com to reset the password. 
 
In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Ques�ons (FAQs) for Shareholders 
and e-vo�ng user manual for Shareholders available at the download sec�on of 
www.evo�ng.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Sarita Mote at 
evo�ng@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for pro-
curing user id and password and registra�on of e mail ids for e-vo�ng for the resolu�ons set out in 
this no�ce:

In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share cer�ficate (front and back), PAN (self a�ested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self a�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@deepakchemtex.in

In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 
digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self 
a�ested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self sa�ested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to 
cs@deepakchemtex.in. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode, 
you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for 
e-Vo�ng and joining virtual mee�ng for Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat 
mode.

Alterna�vely shareholder/members may send a request to evo�ng@nsdl.comfor procuring user 
id and password for e-vo�ng by providing above men�oned documents.

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Vo�ng facility provided by Listed Compa-
nies, Individual shareholders holding securi�es in demat mode are allowed to vote through their 
demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Par�cipants. Shareholders are 
required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order 
to access e-Vo�ng facility.

1.

2.

3.

4.

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR E-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE AGM ARE AS UNDER:-

The procedure for e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM is same as the instruc�ons men�oned above 
for remote e-vo�ng.

Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility 
and have not casted their vote on the Resolu�ons through remote e-Vo�ng and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through e-Vo�ng system in the AGM.

Members who have voted through Remote e-Vo�ng will be eligible to a�end the AGM. Howev-
er, they will not be eligible to vote at the AGM.

The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility 
for e-Vo�ng on the day of the AGM shall be the same person men�oned for Remote e-vo�ng.

1.

2.

3.

4.
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INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE AGM THROUGHVC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER:

By Order of the Board of Directors
For Deepak Chemtex Limited

sd/-
Sonam Sharma 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri 
Date:August 29, 2024

Member will be provided with a facility to a�end the AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL 
e-Vo�ng system. Members may access by following the steps men�oned above for Access to 
NSDL e-Vo�ng system. A�er successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join 
mee�ng” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed 
under Join Mee�ng menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login 
where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have 
the User ID and Password for e-Vo�ng or have forgo�en the User ID and Password may retrieve 
the same by following the remote e-Vo�ng instruc�ons men�oned in the no�ce to avoid last 
minute rush.

Members are encouraged to join the Mee�ng through Laptops for be�er experience.

Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid 
any disturbance during the mee�ng.

Please note that Par�cipants Connec�ng from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop 
connec�ng via Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctua�on in their 
respec�ve network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connec�on to 
mi�gate any kind of aforesaid glitches.

Shareholders who would like to express their views/have ques�ons may send their ques�ons in 
advance men�oning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number 
at cs@deepakchemtex.in. The same will be replied by the company suitably.

i.

ii.

iv.

v.

iii.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE (FOR ITEM NUMBER 2)

Details of the Directors seeking appointment/re-appointment in pursuance of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons read with Secretarial Standards-2 on General Mee�ngs, as 
applicable. 

Name of the Director Trishla Baid Arora
DIN
Date of Birth
Qualifica�on
Date of Appointment

07063446
July 17, 1977
Bachelor of Arts
20/01/2014

Brief Resume along with Jus�fica�on Note She is the Whole-�me Director and CFO of our 
Company. She has been on the Board since 
January 2014. She has completed her degree 
in Bachelor of Arts in the year 1998 from Stela 
Maris College, Chennai. She has an experience 
of around 21 years in various sector including 
accounts and Finance. She is currently looking 
a�er the Accounts and Finance func�on of our 
Company.

Rela�onship with Directors Wife of Saurabh Deepak Arora and daughter 
of Narendra Kumar Baid.

Exper�se in specific func�onal areas Accounts and Finance

Directorships held inother publiccompanies
(excluding foreigncompanies andSec�on 8
companies)

Nill

1 Nill 1

Chairman/Member of the Commi�ee of the 
Board of Directors in other Companies  

Number of Shares held in the Company 7,98,400

Directorships in 
other Indian Public 
Limited Companies 
(Including this 
Company)

No. of Board Commi�ees 
in which Chairman / 
Member in Audit/ Stake-
holder Commi�ee
(Including this Company)

Chairman Member
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By Order of the Board of Directors
For Deepak Chemtex Limited

Sd/-
Sonam Sharma 

Company Secretary and Compliance officer

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri 
Date:August 29, 2024
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The Members
Deepak Chemtex Limited
Ratnagiri

Your Directors have the immense pleasure to present the 27th (Twenty-Seventh) Board’s Report on 
the business and opera�ons of the Company and the accounts for the Financial Year ended March 
31, 2024.

BOARD’S REPORT  

FINANCIAL RESULTS
The Company’s financial performance for the year ended March 31, 2024 is summarized below:   

1.

OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Standalone total revenue is Rs. 
5,158.65lakhs as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.72 lakhs in the previous year. The Stand-
alone profit before tax stood at Rs. 885.24lakhs as against profit of Rs. 820.02lakhs in the previ-
ous year. TheStandalone net profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 663.39 lakhs against profit of 
Rs. 614.71lakhs reported in the previous year.
 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Consolidated total revenue is Rs. 
5,053.68 lakhs as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Consoli-
dated profit before tax stood at Rs. 821.03lakhs as against profit of Rs. 817.28lakhs in the previ-
ous year. TheConsolidated net profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 597.28lakhs against profit of 
Rs. 611.97lakhs reported in the previous year.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
During the year the Company is in the business of manufacturers,producers, refiners, exporters 
and importers of anddealers in sulphuric acid, oleums chlore-sulphonieacid, hydrochloric acid 
and other inorganic acids ofall kinds alums of all grades, pyrites, gypsum,bauxite, alumina, 
aluminium hydroxide or anyother aluminium compounds, sulphur, zinc,copper, mag- nesium, 
zinc sulphate coppersulphate, magnesium sulphate and othersulphates hydrogen, chlorine, 
fer�lisers, pes�cides,pharmaceu�cals, polymers plas�cs, detergents,dyes, essences, etc. 

2.

3.

Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Year ended 
March 31, 2023

Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Par�culars

Total Income (Revenue) 5,158.65 4,783.72 5,053.68 4,783.73

Less: Expenses 4,273.40 3,963.70 4,232.66 3,966.45

Profit/(Loss) before taxa�on 885.24 820.02 821.03 817.28

Less: Tax Expense 231.24 228.22 229.22 228.22

Profit/(Loss) a�er tax 663.39 614.71 597.28 611.97

Standalone Consolidated
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There is no change in nature of the business of the Company. 

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024.

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to reserves.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES
Your Directors are pleased to inform you that, the Company has completed its Ini�al Public 
Offer (“IPO”) of 28,80,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each at an issue price of Rs. 80/- 
aggrega�ng to Rs. 23,04,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Three Crores Four Lakh only).

The Offer was made pursuant to Regula�on 6(1) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018. The equity shares of the Company were listed on BSE Limited 
on December 06, 2023. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 11,00,00,000/-(Rupees Eleven Crores only) 
comprising of 1,10,00,000(One Crore Ten Lakhs only)equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The paid-up Share Capital as on March 31, 2024, was Rs. 10,86,40,000/- (Rupees TenCrores 
Eighty-Six Lakhs Forty Thousand only) consis�ng of 1,08,64,000 (One Crore Eight Lakh Sixty-Four 
Thousand Only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. 

During the period under review, the Company has:
a. sub-divided the shares resul�ng into change of face value of the Company from Rs. 100/- per   
     share to Rs. 10/- per share vide its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on June 10, 2023.  
b. Increased the authorized share capital of the Company from Rs. 50,00,000/- to Rs. 
     11,00,00,000/- at its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on July 28, 2023.   
c. issued and allo�ed Bonus Shares on August 09, 2023in the ra�o of 15:1 during the financial 
    year 2023-24.

The Company has not issued shares with differen�al vo�ng rights during the year under review.

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence 
no 
informa�on as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished.

There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure 
under Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been 
furnished.

4.

5.

6.

OPERATIONS & STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Standalone total revenue is Rs. 
5,158.65lakhs as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.72 lakhs in the previous year. The Stand-
alone profit before tax stood at Rs. 885.24lakhs as against profit of Rs. 820.02lakhs in the previ-
ous year. TheStandalone net profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 663.39 lakhs against profit of 
Rs. 614.71lakhs reported in the previous year.
 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Consolidated total revenue is Rs. 
5,053.68 lakhs as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Consoli-
dated profit before tax stood at Rs. 821.03lakhs as against profit of Rs. 817.28lakhs in the previ-
ous year. TheConsolidated net profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 597.28lakhs against profit of 
Rs. 611.97lakhs reported in the previous year.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
During the year the Company is in the business of manufacturers,producers, refiners, exporters 
and importers of anddealers in sulphuric acid, oleums chlore-sulphonieacid, hydrochloric acid 
and other inorganic acids ofall kinds alums of all grades, pyrites, gypsum,bauxite, alumina, 
aluminium hydroxide or anyother aluminium compounds, sulphur, zinc,copper, mag- nesium, 
zinc sulphate coppersulphate, magnesium sulphate and othersulphates hydrogen, chlorine, 
fer�lisers, pes�cides,pharmaceu�cals, polymers plas�cs, detergents,dyes, essences, etc. 
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There is no change in nature of the business of the Company. 

DIVIDEND AND RESERVES
Your Directors do not recommend any dividend for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024.

The Company does not propose to transfer any amount to reserves.

INITIAL PUBLIC OFFER OF EQUITY SHARES
Your Directors are pleased to inform you that, the Company has completed its Ini�al Public 
Offer (“IPO”) of 28,80,000 Equity Shares of face value of 10/- each at an issue price of Rs. 80/- 
aggrega�ng to Rs. 23,04,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Three Crores Four Lakh only).

The Offer was made pursuant to Regula�on 6(1) of SEBI (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2018. The equity shares of the Company were listed on BSE Limited 
on December 06, 2023. 
 
SHARE CAPITAL
The authorized share capital of the Company is Rs. 11,00,00,000/-(Rupees Eleven Crores only) 
comprising of 1,10,00,000(One Crore Ten Lakhs only)equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

The paid-up Share Capital as on March 31, 2024, was Rs. 10,86,40,000/- (Rupees TenCrores 
Eighty-Six Lakhs Forty Thousand only) consis�ng of 1,08,64,000 (One Crore Eight Lakh Sixty-Four 
Thousand Only) equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up. 

During the period under review, the Company has:
a. sub-divided the shares resul�ng into change of face value of the Company from Rs. 100/- per   
     share to Rs. 10/- per share vide its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on June 10, 2023.  
b. Increased the authorized share capital of the Company from Rs. 50,00,000/- to Rs. 
     11,00,00,000/- at its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on July 28, 2023.   
c. issued and allo�ed Bonus Shares on August 09, 2023in the ra�o of 15:1 during the financial 
    year 2023-24.

The Company has not issued shares with differen�al vo�ng rights during the year under review.

The Company has not issued any sweat equity shares during the year under review and hence 
no 
informa�on as per provisions of Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) 
Rules, 2014 is furnished.

There are no shares held by trustees for the benefit of employees and hence no disclosure 
under Rule 16(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 has been 
furnished.

SUBSIDAIRY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES
As on March 31, 2024, the Company is having two (2) subsidiary viz. 
1. DCPL Speciality Chemicals Private Limited
2. South west Corpora�on (wholly-owned subsidiary)

The details as required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding theper-
formance and financial posi�on of the said Subsidiary are provided in Form AOC-1, which form 
part o�he Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and as prescribed by 
the SEBILis�ng Regula�ons, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in this 
Annual Report.

Pursuant to Sec�on 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the Finan-
cialStatements of the Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures of the Company in the 
prescribed formAOC-1 is annexed as “Annexure-I” to this Annual Report.

Pursuant to Sec�on 136 of the Act, the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary are available on 
thewebsite of the Company i.e. www.deepakchemtex.inunder the Investors Sec�on. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your company provides utmost importance at best Governance Prac�ces and are designated to 
act in the best interest of its stakeholders. Be�er governance prac�ce enables the Company to 
introduce more effec�ve internal controls suitable to the changing nature of business opera-
�ons, improve performance and also provide an opportunity to increase stakeholders under-
standing of the key ac�vi�es and policies of the organiza�on. 

Further Pursuant to Regula�on 27(2) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regula�ons, 2015, read with Regula�on 15 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Require-
ments), Regula�ons, 2015 regula�on of corporate governance are not applicable to company 
Hence, 27th Annual Report does not contain the Corporate Governance Report.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) read with Sec�on 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 is available on the website of the Company at ww-
w.deepakchemtex.in under Investor Informa�on tab.

7.

8.

9.

10.
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SUBSIDAIRY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES
As on March 31, 2024, the Company is having two (2) subsidiary viz. 
1. DCPL Speciality Chemicals Private Limited
2. South west Corpora�on (wholly-owned subsidiary)

The details as required under Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 regarding theper-
formance and financial posi�on of the said Subsidiary are provided in Form AOC-1, which form 
part o�he Consolidated Financial Statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT
In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”) and as prescribed by 
the SEBILis�ng Regula�ons, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements are provided in this 
Annual Report.

Pursuant to Sec�on 129(3) of the Act, a statement containing the salient features of the Finan-
cialStatements of the Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint Ventures of the Company in the 
prescribed formAOC-1 is annexed as “Annexure-I” to this Annual Report.

Pursuant to Sec�on 136 of the Act, the Financial Statements of the Subsidiary are available on 
thewebsite of the Company i.e. www.deepakchemtex.inunder the Investors Sec�on. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
Your company provides utmost importance at best Governance Prac�ces and are designated to 
act in the best interest of its stakeholders. Be�er governance prac�ce enables the Company to 
introduce more effec�ve internal controls suitable to the changing nature of business opera-
�ons, improve performance and also provide an opportunity to increase stakeholders under-
standing of the key ac�vi�es and policies of the organiza�on. 

Further Pursuant to Regula�on 27(2) of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regula�ons, 2015, read with Regula�on 15 of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure Require-
ments), Regula�ons, 2015 regula�on of corporate governance are not applicable to company 
Hence, 27th Annual Report does not contain the Corporate Governance Report.

ANNUAL RETURN
Pursuant to Sec�on 92(3) read with Sec�on 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return for the 
financial year ended on March 31, 2024 is available on the website of the Company at ww-
w.deepakchemtex.in under Investor Informa�on tab.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
• In terms of the provision of sec�on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013 and of Ar�cles of Associa
   �on of the Company, Mrs. Trishla Baid Arora (DIN: 07063446), Director of the Company re�res 
   by rota�on at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng and being eligible, seeks re- appointment.
• All Independent Directors have furnished the declara�ons to the Company confirming that 
   they meet the criteria of Independence as prescribed under Sec�on 149 of the Act and Regu
   la�on 16 (1)(b) read with Regula�on 25(8) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons and the Board has 
   taken on record the said declara�ons a�er undertaking due assessment of the veracity of the 
   same.
• The Company has also received Form DIR-8 from all the Directors pursuant to Sec�on 164(2) 
   and Rule 14(1) of Companies (Appointment and Qualifica�on of Directors) Rules, 2014.
• Brief profile of the Director seeking re-appointment has been given as an annexure to the 
   No�ce of the ensuing AGM.
• During the year 2023-24, following Directors/KMP were appointed:
a. Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora was appointed and re-designate as a Chairman and Managing 
    Director of the Company w.e.f. July 28, 2023.
b. Mrs. Trishla Baid was appointed and re-designatedasWhole Time Director of the Company 
     w.e.f. July 28, 2023.
c.  Mr. Narendra Kumar Baid was appointed as Non-Execu�ve Director of the Company w.e.f. 
     July 28, 2023.
d.  Mr. Gautam Lathwas appointed as Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company 
     w.e.f. July 28, 2023.
e.  Mrs. Pinky Kedia was appointed as Non-Execu�ve Independent Director of the Company 
      w.e.f. July 28, 2023.
f.  Mrs. Sonam Sharma was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the 
     Company w.e.f.  September 20, 2023.
g. Mrs. Trishla Baid was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company w.e.f. on 
    September 20, 2023.

MEETINGS
The Board of Directors of your Company met 10(Ten) �mes during the financial year 2023-24. 
The maximum �me gap between any two consecu�ve Mee�ngs did not exceed one hundred 
and twenty days.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES THERE OF
i.  Composi�on of the Board of Directors
The Company is fully compliant with the Corporate Governance norms in terms of cons�tu�on 
anof the Board of Directors (“the Board”). The Board of the Company is composed of individuals 
from diverse fields. The Board of the Company is composed of Execu�ve, Non-Execu�ve and 
Independent Directors.

11.

12.

13.
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The composi�on of the Board also complies with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Regula�on 17 (1) of SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 2015

As on March 31, 2024, the strength of the Board of Directors of the Company was at Six Direc-
tors comprising of Three Execu�ve, One Non-Execu�ve Director and Two Non-Execu�ve Inde-
pendent 

Directors. 1/3rd of the Board comprised of Independent Directors. The details of the Board of 
Directors as on March 31, 2024 are given below:

11.

As on March 31, 2024, Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora and Mrs. Trishla BaidArora holding 71,37,552 
and,7,98,400equity shares of the Company respec�vely. Mr.Narendra Kumar Baid, Mr.Sidharth 
Baid and Mrs.Chandan Baid, rela�ves of the Directors holding 16equity shares each of the 
Company. Except above, no other Director or their rela�ve hold shares of the Company.

ii. Board Mee�ngs 
During the financial year under review, 12 (Twelve) Board mee�ngs were held on May 17, 2023; 
August 02, 2023; August 08, 2023; August 09, 2023; September 01, 2023;September 20, 2023; 
September 30, 2023; November 21, 2023; December 04, 2023, December 13, 2023, January 04, 
2024 and February 20, 2024. The gap between two Board mee�ngs was in compliance with the 
provisions of the Act. Details of Directors as on March 31, 2024 and their a�endance at the 
Board mee�ngs and Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) during the financial year ended March 
31, 2024 are given below:

 

Name of the 
Director 

Designa�on Date of 
Joining 

No. of Directorships / Commi�ee Memberships/ 
Chairmanships 

Public 
Limited 

Companies 
(including 

this) 

Private Limited 
and Sec�on 8 

Companies 

Commi�ee 
Membership
s 

Commi�ee 
Chairman 
Ships 

Mr. Saurabh 
Deepak Arora 

Chairman, 
Managing 
Director 

10.06.1997 Nil 01 1 1 

Mrs.Trishla 
Baid 

Whole-�me 
Director & 
CFO 

20.01.2014 Nil 01 1 Nil 

Mr. Rajesh 
Kalikaprasad 
Tiwari 

Execu�ve 
Director 

30.11.2021 Nil 02 1 Nil 

Mr. Narendra 
Kumar Baid 

Non-
Execu�ve 
Director 

28.07.2023 01 01 3 Nil 

Mr. Gautam 
Lath 

Independent 
Director 

28.07.202
3 

Nil 01 2 1 

Mrs.  Pinki 
Kedia 

Independent 
Director 

28.07.202
3 

Nil 01 2 2 
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iii. Audit Commi�ee:
Our Company has formed an Audit Commi�ee, vide Board Resolu�on dated September 20, 
2023 as per the applicableprovisions of the Sec�on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
rule 6 of the companies (Mee�ng of board and itspower) Rules, 2014 and Regula�on 18 of SEBI 
Lis�ng Regula�ons. The Audit Commi�ee comprises followingmembers:

During the year under review, Four (4) mee�ngs of the AuditCommi�ee were held on Septem-
ber 30, 2023; November 21, 2023; December 04, 2023 and February 20, 2024

Terms of Reference 
The Audit Commi�ee has inter-alia the following mandate:

Name 
of the Director 

Category No. of the 
Mee�ngheld 

No. of 
theMee�ng 

a�ended 

A�ended at 
AGM 

Mr. Saurabh Deepak 
Arora 

Chairman & Managing 
Director 

12 12 Yes 

Mrs. Trishla Baid Whole Time Director 
& CFO 

12 12 Yes 

Mr. Rajesh 
Kalikaprasad Tiwari 

Whole Time Director 12 12 Yes 

Mr. Narendra Kumar 
Baid 

Execu�ve Director 12 11 Yes 

Mr. Gautam Lath  Independent Director 12 4 Yes 

Mrs.  Pinki Kedia Independent Director 12 4 Yes 

Name of the Member Category Posi�on Mee�ngs 
Held A�ended 

Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent Director Chairperson 4 4 
Mr. Gautam Lath Independent Director Member 4 4 
Mr. Trishla Baid Whole-�me Director Member 4 4 

Overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process and disclosure of its financial informa�on 
to ensure that its financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

Recommending to the Board for the appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remunera�on 
and terms of appointment of the statutory auditors of the Company; 

Reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor’s independence and performance, and effec-
�veness of audit process; 
 
Approving payments to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors; 

1.

2.

3.

4.
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Terms of Reference 
The Audit Commi�ee has inter-alia the following mandate:

Overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process and disclosure of its financial informa�on 
to ensure that its financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 

Recommending to the Board for the appointment, re-appointment, replacement, remunera�on 
and terms of appointment of the statutory auditors of the Company; 

Reviewing and monitoring the statutory auditor’s independence and performance, and effec-
�veness of audit process; 
 
Approving payments to the statutory auditors for any other services rendered by the statutory 
auditors; 

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 
before submission to the Board for approval, with par�cular reference to: 

i. Ma�ers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 
   the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act; 
ii. Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same; 
iii. Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by manage
     ment;
iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
v. Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements; 
vi. Disclosure of any related party transac�ons; and 
vii. Qualifica�ons and modified opinions in the dra� audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements 
before submission to the Board for approval; 

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ applica�on of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferen�al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ no�ce and the report 
submi�ed by the monitoring agency monitoring the u�liza�on of proceeds of a public or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommenda�ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma�er. 
This also includes monitoring the use/applica�on of the funds raised through the proposed 
ini�al public offer by the Company; 
 
Approval or any subsequent modifica�ons of transac�ons of the Company with related par�es 
and omnibus approval for related party transac�ons proposed to be entered into by the Compa-
ny subject to such condi�ons as may be prescribed;

Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

Valua�on of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or 
grievances; 

Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, and 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.
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Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon 
before submission to the Board for approval, with par�cular reference to: 

i. Ma�ers required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in 
   the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of sub-sec�on 3 of Sec�on 134 of the Companies Act; 
ii. Changes, if any, in accoun�ng policies and prac�ces and reasons for the same; 
iii. Major accoun�ng entries involving es�mates based on the exercise of judgment by manage
     ment;
iv. Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings; 
v. Compliance with lis�ng and other legal requirements rela�ng to financial statements; 
vi. Disclosure of any related party transac�ons; and 
vii. Qualifica�ons and modified opinions in the dra� audit report.

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly, half-yearly and annual financial statements 
before submission to the Board for approval; 

Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses/ applica�on of funds raised through an 
issue (public issue, rights issue, preferen�al issue, etc.), the statement of funds u�lized for 
purposes other than those stated in the offer document/ prospectus/ no�ce and the report 
submi�ed by the monitoring agency monitoring the u�liza�on of proceeds of a public or rights 
issue, and making appropriate recommenda�ons to the Board to take up steps in this ma�er. 
This also includes monitoring the use/applica�on of the funds raised through the proposed 
ini�al public offer by the Company; 
 
Approval or any subsequent modifica�ons of transac�ons of the Company with related par�es 
and omnibus approval for related party transac�ons proposed to be entered into by the Compa-
ny subject to such condi�ons as may be prescribed;

Scru�ny of inter-corporate loans and investments; 

Valua�on of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary; 

Evalua�on of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

Establishing a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report their genuine concerns or 
grievances; 

Reviewing, with the management, the performance of statutory and internal auditors, and 
adequacy of the internal control systems; 

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit func�on if any, including the structure of the internal 
audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, repor�ng struc-
ture coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

Discussing with internal auditors on any significant findings and follow up thereon; 

Reviewing the findings of any internal inves�ga�ons by the internal auditors into ma�ers where 
there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material 
nature and repor�ng the ma�er to the Board; 

Discussing with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of 
audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

Looking into the reasons for substan�al defaults in the payment to the depositors, debenture 
holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors; 

Reviewing the func�oning of the whistle blower mechanism; 

Approving the appointment of the chief financial officer or any other person heading the 
finance func�on or discharging that func�on a�er assessing the qualifica�ons, experience and 
background, etc. of the candidate; 

Reviewing the u�liza�on of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding company in 
any subsidiary exceeding ₹100 Crore or 10% of the asset size of the subsidiary, whichever is 
lower including exis�ng loans / advances / investments; 

Considering and commen�ng on the ra�onale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 
merger, demerger, amalgama�on etc., on the Company and its shareholders; 

Such roles as may be delegated by the Board and/or prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons or other applicable law.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

iv. Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee
Our Company has formed a Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee vide Board Resolu�on 
dated September 20, 2023as per the applicable provisions of the Schedule V and other applica-
ble provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read withrule 6 of the companies (Mee�ng of board 
and its power) rules, 2014 and Regula�on 19 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons.The Nomina�on and 
Remunera�on Commi�ee comprises following members:
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Formula�ng the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of 
a director and recommend to the Board a policy rela�ng to the remunera�on of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees; 
 
For the appointment of an independent director, the commi�ee shall evaluate the balance of 
skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evalua�on, prepare a 
descrip�on of the role and capabili�es required of an independent director. The person recom-
mended to the board of directors of the Company for appointment as an independent director 
shall have the capabili�es iden�fied in such descrip�on. For the purpose of iden�fying suitable 
candidates, the Commi�ee may: 
a. use the services of external agencies, if required; 
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 
c. Consider the �me commitments of the candidates. 

formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of the performance of independent directors and the 
Board; 
 
devising a policy on diversity of our Board; 
 
iden�fying persons, who are qualified to become directors or who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carrying out evalua�on of every director’s performance; 
 
determining whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent direc-
tor, on the basis of the report of performance evalua�on of independent directors; 
 
recommending remunera�on of execu�ve directors and any increase therein from �me to �me 
within the limit approved by the members of our Company; 
 
recommending remunera�on to non-execu�ve directors in the form of si�ng fees for a�ending 
mee�ngs of the Board and its commi�ees, remunera�on for other services, commission on 
profits; 

1.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Name of the Member Category Posi�on Mee�ngs 
Held A�ended 

Mr. Gautam Lath Independent Director Chairperson 2 2 
Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent Director Member 2 2 
Mr. Narendra Kumar Baid Non-Execu�ve Director Member 2 2 

During the year under review, Two (2) mee�ngs of the Nomina�on and Remunera�onCommi�ee 
were held on December 04, 2023 and February 20, 2024.
Terms of Reference
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has the following mandate:
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Formula�ng the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of 
a director and recommend to the Board a policy rela�ng to the remunera�on of the directors, 
key managerial personnel and other employees; 
 
For the appointment of an independent director, the commi�ee shall evaluate the balance of 
skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and on the basis of such evalua�on, prepare a 
descrip�on of the role and capabili�es required of an independent director. The person recom-
mended to the board of directors of the Company for appointment as an independent director 
shall have the capabili�es iden�fied in such descrip�on. For the purpose of iden�fying suitable 
candidates, the Commi�ee may: 
a. use the services of external agencies, if required; 
b. consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to diversity; and 
c. Consider the �me commitments of the candidates. 

formula�on of criteria for evalua�on of the performance of independent directors and the 
Board; 
 
devising a policy on diversity of our Board; 
 
iden�fying persons, who are qualified to become directors or who may be appointed in senior 
management in accordance with the criteria laid down, recommending to the Board their 
appointment and removal and carrying out evalua�on of every director’s performance; 
 
determining whether to extend or con�nue the term of appointment of the independent direc-
tor, on the basis of the report of performance evalua�on of independent directors; 
 
recommending remunera�on of execu�ve directors and any increase therein from �me to �me 
within the limit approved by the members of our Company; 
 
recommending remunera�on to non-execu�ve directors in the form of si�ng fees for a�ending 
mee�ngs of the Board and its commi�ees, remunera�on for other services, commission on 
profits; 

v. Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee

performing such func�ons as are required to be performed by the compensa�on commi�ee 
under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regula�ons, 2021, as amend-
ed; 
 
engaging the services of any consultant/professional or other agency for the purpose of recom-
mending compensa�on structure/policy; 
 
analyzing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensa�on ma�ers; 
 
reviewing and approving compensa�on strategy from �me to �me in the context of the then 
current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws; 
 
framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no viola�on, by an employee of any 
applicable laws in India or overseas, including: 
a. The SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended; or 
b. The SEBI (Prohibi�on of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Prac�ces rela�ng to the Securi�es 
    Market) Regula�ons, 2003, as amended; and 

Performing such other func�ons as may be delegated by the Board and/or prescribed under the 
SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, Companies Act, each as amended or other applicable law. 

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Terms of Reference
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has the following mandate:

Our Company has formed a Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee vide Board Resolu�on dated 
September 20, 2023 asper the applicable provisions of the Sec�on 178(5) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with rule 6 of the companies(Mee�ng of board and its power) rules, 2014 and Regula-
�on 20 of SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. The StakeholdersRela�onship Commi�ee comprises following 
members:

During the year under review, Two (2) mee�ngs of the Stakeholders Rela�onship Commi�ee were 
held on December 04, 2023 and February 20, 2024

Name of the Member Category Posi�on Mee�ngs 
Held A�ended 

Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent Director Chairperson 2 2 
Mr. Gautam Lath Independent Director Member 2 2 
Mr. Narendra Kumar Baid Non-Execu�ve Director Member 2 2 

Resolving the grievances of the security holders of the listed en�ty including complaints related 
to transfer/transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared divi-
dends, issue of new/duplicate cer�ficates, general mee�ngs etc.;

1.
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Review of measures taken for effec�ve exercise of vo�ng rights by shareholders;
 
Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed en�ty in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;
 
Review of the various measures and ini�a�ves taken by the listed en�ty for reducing the quan-
tum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring �mely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ 
statutory no�ces by the shareholders of the company;
 
Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, spli�ng of shares, changing joint holding 
into single holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost 
or defaced or where the space at back for recording transfers have been fully u�lized;
 
Formula�on of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of 
various requests received from shareholders from �me to �me;
 
To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) cer�ficate(s) in lieu of the original share/securi-
ty(ies) cer�ficate(s) of the Company;
 
Non-receipt of share cer�ficate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/ 
dividend warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other grievance/ complaints with 
Company or any officer of the Company arising out in discharge of his du�es;
 
Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note 
of complaints directly received and resolved them;
 
Oversee the implementa�on and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company 
for preven�on of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securi�es & Exchange 
Board of India (Prohibi�on of insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015 as amended from �me to �me;
 
Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from �me to 
�me by way of resolu�on passed by it in a duly conducted Mee�ng; and
 
Such roles as may be delegated by the Board and/ or prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons or other applicable law.

2.

3.

4.

5.

6.

7.

8.

9.

10.

11.

12.

performing such func�ons as are required to be performed by the compensa�on commi�ee 
under the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regula�ons, 2021, as amend-
ed; 
 
engaging the services of any consultant/professional or other agency for the purpose of recom-
mending compensa�on structure/policy; 
 
analyzing, monitoring and reviewing various human resource and compensa�on ma�ers; 
 
reviewing and approving compensa�on strategy from �me to �me in the context of the then 
current Indian market in accordance with applicable laws; 
 
framing suitable policies and systems to ensure that there is no viola�on, by an employee of any 
applicable laws in India or overseas, including: 
a. The SEBI (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015, as amended; or 
b. The SEBI (Prohibi�on of Fraudulent and Unfair Trade Prac�ces rela�ng to the Securi�es 
    Market) Regula�ons, 2003, as amended; and 

Performing such other func�ons as may be delegated by the Board and/or prescribed under the 
SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons, Companies Act, each as amended or other applicable law. 
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Review of measures taken for effec�ve exercise of vo�ng rights by shareholders;
 
Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the listed en�ty in respect of various 
services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent;
 
Review of the various measures and ini�a�ves taken by the listed en�ty for reducing the quan-
tum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring �mely receipt of dividend warrants/ annual reports/ 
statutory no�ces by the shareholders of the company;
 
Allotment, transfer of shares including transmission, spli�ng of shares, changing joint holding 
into single holding and vice versa, issue of duplicate shares in lieu of those torn, destroyed, lost 
or defaced or where the space at back for recording transfers have been fully u�lized;
 
Formula�on of procedures in line with the statutory guidelines to ensure speedy disposal of 
various requests received from shareholders from �me to �me;
 
To issue duplicate share or other security(ies) cer�ficate(s) in lieu of the original share/securi-
ty(ies) cer�ficate(s) of the Company;
 
Non-receipt of share cer�ficate(s), non-receipt of declared dividends, non-receipt of interest/ 
dividend warrants, non-receipt of annual report and any other grievance/ complaints with 
Company or any officer of the Company arising out in discharge of his du�es;
 
Oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent and also review and take note 
of complaints directly received and resolved them;
 
Oversee the implementa�on and compliance of the Code of Conduct adopted by the Company 
for preven�on of Insider Trading for Listed Companies as specified in the Securi�es & Exchange 
Board of India (Prohibi�on of insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015 as amended from �me to �me;
 
Any other power specifically assigned by the Board of Directors of the Company from �me to 
�me by way of resolu�on passed by it in a duly conducted Mee�ng; and
 
Such roles as may be delegated by the Board and/ or prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 
and SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons or other applicable law.

GENERAL MEETING
The Annual General Mee�ng of the Company was held at its registered office for the Financial 
Year 2023-24.

14.

REGISTRAR AND SHARE TRANSFER AGENT INFORMATION
Bigshare Service Private Limited
S6-2, 6th Floor, Pinnacle Business Park, Next to Ahura Centre, 
Mahakali Caves Road, Andheri (East),
Mumbai, Maharashtra-400093
Tel: +91 -22-262638200
Email Id:- info@bigshareonline.com.

15.

PARTICULARS CRITERIA FOR SELECTION OF CANDIDATES FOR APPOINTMENT AS DIRECTORS, 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has laid down well-defined criteria, in the Nomi-
na�on and Remunera�on Policy, for selec�on of candidates for appointment as Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. 

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed by weblink ww-
w.deepakchemtex.in

16.

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
All Independent Directors have given declara�ons that they meet the criteria of independence 
as laid down under Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 16(1) (b) of the 
Lis�ng Regula�ons. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors, fulfill the condi�ons 
of independence specified in Sec�on 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regula�on 16(1) 
(b) of the Lis�ng Regula�ons and are independent of management.

During the financial year 2023-24, one (1) mee�ng of the Independent Directors was held on 
February 20, 2024,

inter-alia, to review the following:
(i) Review performance of non-independent directors and the Board of Directors as a whole.
(ii) Review performance of the Chairperson of the Company.
(iii) Assess the quality, quan�ty, and �meliness of the flow of informa�on between the manage-
ment of the Company and the Board of Directors that is necessary for the Board to perform 
their du�es effec�vely and reasonably.

17.

Financial Year Nature of 
Mee�ng 

Time(IST) Date 

2023-24 EGM 04.00 P.M. 10.06.2023 
2023-24 EGM 11.00 A.M. 28.07.2023 
2023-24 EGM 10.00 A.M. 17.08.2023 
2023-24 EGM 11.00 A.M. 21.09.2023 
2023-24 AGM 11.30 A.M. 30.09.2023 
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The mee�ng was a�ended by all the Independent Directors.

The familiariza�on program and other disclosures as specified under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 is available on the Company’s websitewww.deepakchemtex.in

A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE, 
AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINT-
ED DURING THE YEAR
The Company has received declara�on from the Independent Directors that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under Sec�on 149 of the Act and Regula�on 16 (1)(b) 
read with Regula�on 25(8) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfil 
the condi�on for appointment/re-appointment as Independent Directors on the Board and 
possess the a�ributes of integrity, exper�se and experience as required to be disclosed under 
Rule 8(5) (iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY
Par�culars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments made during the year as required under the 
provisionsof Sec�on 186 of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements forming 
part of Annual Report.

Also, pursuant to Paragraph A (2) of Schedule V of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ngObliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) 
par�culars ofLoans/Advances given to subsidiary have been disclosed in the notes to the Finan-
cial Statementsforming part of Annual Report. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Direc-
tors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or viola�on of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for 
adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of employees who avail of the mechanism and pro-
vides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee. It is affirmed that no person has 
been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. 

The said Policy is available on the Company website and can be accessed by weblink www.deep-
akchemtex.in

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MAN-
AGEMENT EMPLOYEES
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has laid down the framework for remunera�on 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel in the Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Policy recommended by it and approved by the Board of Directors. 

18.
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The mee�ng was a�ended by all the Independent Directors.

The familiariza�on program and other disclosures as specified under SEBI (LODR) Regula�ons, 
2015 is available on the Company’s websitewww.deepakchemtex.in

A STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE, 
AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS APPOINT-
ED DURING THE YEAR
The Company has received declara�on from the Independent Directors that they meet the 
criteria of independence as prescribed under Sec�on 149 of the Act and Regula�on 16 (1)(b) 
read with Regula�on 25(8) of the SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons. In the opinion of the Board, they fulfil 
the condi�on for appointment/re-appointment as Independent Directors on the Board and 
possess the a�ributes of integrity, exper�se and experience as required to be disclosed under 
Rule 8(5) (iiia) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS BY COMPANY
Par�culars of Loans, Guarantees and Investments made during the year as required under the 
provisionsof Sec�on 186 of the Act are given in the notes to the Financial Statements forming 
part of Annual Report.

Also, pursuant to Paragraph A (2) of Schedule V of the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
(Lis�ngObliga�ons and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, (“SEBI Lis�ng Regula�ons”) 
par�culars ofLoans/Advances given to subsidiary have been disclosed in the notes to the Finan-
cial Statementsforming part of Annual Report. 
 
WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY
The Company has adopted a Whistle Blower Policy to provide a formal mechanism to the Direc-
tors and employees to report their concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or viola�on of the Company’s Code of Conduct or Ethics Policy. The Policy provides for 
adequate safeguards against vic�miza�on of employees who avail of the mechanism and pro-
vides for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Commi�ee. It is affirmed that no person has 
been denied access to the Audit Commi�ee. 

The said Policy is available on the Company website and can be accessed by weblink www.deep-
akchemtex.in

REMUNERATION POLICY FOR DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL AND SENIOR MAN-
AGEMENT EMPLOYEES
The Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee has laid down the framework for remunera�on 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel in the Nomina�on 
and Remunera�on Policy recommended by it and approved by the Board of Directors. 

The Policy, inter-alia, defines Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company and prescribes the role of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee. The 
Policy lays down the criteria for iden�fica�on, appointment and re�rement of Directors and 
Senior Management. The Policy broadly lays down the framework in rela�on to remunera�on 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The Policy also 
provides for the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of 
Director and lays down the framework on Board diversity.

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed by weblink ww-
w.deepakchemtex.in

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND POLICY
All the transac�ons/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Sec�on 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with related 
party(ies) are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. 

The par�culars of related party transac�on at arms’ length basis is disclosed in Board report and 
marked as “Annexure-II”.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future opera�ons.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY FROM THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year under review, the Status of the Company has been converted from Private 
Limited to Public Limited vide its Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on August 17, 2023.

Since the closure of the Financial Year i.e., March 31, 2024, the Company vide Prospectus dated-
December04, 2023 issued its securi�es via Ini�al Public Offering and the Company got listed on 
BSEEmerge stock exchange on December06, 2023. Therefore, the Company now being a Listed 
Company, theFinancial Posi�on of the Company is varied.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
 
Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm 
that;
i. in the prepara�on of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable 
accoun�ng standards have been followed along with proper explana�on rela�ng to departures, 
if any;

22.

23.
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25.
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The Policy, inter-alia, defines Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel of 
the Company and prescribes the role of the Nomina�on and Remunera�on Commi�ee. The 
Policy lays down the criteria for iden�fica�on, appointment and re�rement of Directors and 
Senior Management. The Policy broadly lays down the framework in rela�on to remunera�on 
of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior Management Personnel. The Policy also 
provides for the criteria for determining qualifica�ons, posi�ve a�ributes and independence of 
Director and lays down the framework on Board diversity.

The said Policy is available on the Company’s website and can be accessed by weblink ww-
w.deepakchemtex.in

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND POLICY
All the transac�ons/contracts/arrangements of the nature as specified in Sec�on 188(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013 entered by the Company during the year under review with related 
party(ies) are in the ordinary course of business and on arms’ length basis. 

The par�culars of related party transac�on at arms’ length basis is disclosed in Board report and 
marked as “Annexure-II”.

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
There are no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators/Courts that would impact 
the going concern status of the Company and its future opera�ons.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY, AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 
COMPANY FROM THE END OF FINANCIAL YEAR TILL THE DATE OF THE REPORT

During the year under review, the Status of the Company has been converted from Private 
Limited to Public Limited vide its Extra-Ordinary General Mee�ng held on August 17, 2023.

Since the closure of the Financial Year i.e., March 31, 2024, the Company vide Prospectus dated-
December04, 2023 issued its securi�es via Ini�al Public Offering and the Company got listed on 
BSEEmerge stock exchange on December06, 2023. Therefore, the Company now being a Listed 
Company, theFinancial Posi�on of the Company is varied.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
 
Pursuant to the provisions of sec�on 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors confirm 
that;
i. in the prepara�on of the Annual Accounts for the year ended March 31, 2024, the applicable 
accoun�ng standards have been followed along with proper explana�on rela�ng to departures, 
if any;

ii. appropriate accoun�ng policies have been selected and applied consistently and such judg-
ments and es�mates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date
iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;
iv. the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis;
v. proper internal financial controls are laid down and such internal financial controls are ade-
quate and opera�ng effec�vely;
vi. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been 
devised and such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

Your Auditors have opined that the Company has in, all material respects, maintained adequate 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng and that they were opera�ng effec�vely

STATUTORY AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014,M/s. ADV& Associates (Firm Registra�on No. 128045W), were appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years �ll the conclusion of the AGM 
to be held in the year 2024. 

As the term of Statutory Auditor will end at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) of the 
Company, the Company is required to appoint new Statutory Auditor.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board has recommended the appointment of M/s.Mi�al & Associates 
(Firm Registra�on No. 106456W) as new Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a 
period of 5 years i.e., from the conclusion of this AGM un�l the conclusion of the AGM to be 
held in the year 2029, at a remunera�on to be determined by theBoard of Directors and Audi-
tors.
 
Further, The Auditors’ Report is unmodified i.e., it does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva-
�on or adverse remark.

REPORTING OF FRAUD
There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory 
Auditors to report under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 
We are aware of the poten�al applicability of cost audit requirements and will ensure the 
�melyappointment of a cost auditor if the need arises, in accordance with the Act.

26.
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ii. appropriate accoun�ng policies have been selected and applied consistently and such judg-
ments and es�mates have been made that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and 
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024 and of the profit of the 
Company for the year ended on that date
iii. proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun�ng 
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company 
and for preven�ng and detec�ng fraud and other irregulari�es;
iv. the annual accounts have been prepared on a “going concern” basis;
v. proper internal financial controls are laid down and such internal financial controls are ade-
quate and opera�ng effec�vely;
vi. proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws have been 
devised and such systems were adequate and opera�ng effec�vely.

Your Auditors have opined that the Company has in, all material respects, maintained adequate 
internal financial controls over financial repor�ng and that they were opera�ng effec�vely

STATUTORY AUDIT
Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014,M/s. ADV& Associates (Firm Registra�on No. 128045W), were appointed 
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years �ll the conclusion of the AGM 
to be held in the year 2024. 

As the term of Statutory Auditor will end at the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng (“AGM”) of the 
Company, the Company is required to appoint new Statutory Auditor.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec�on 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the Board has recommended the appointment of M/s.Mi�al & Associates 
(Firm Registra�on No. 106456W) as new Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a 
period of 5 years i.e., from the conclusion of this AGM un�l the conclusion of the AGM to be 
held in the year 2029, at a remunera�on to be determined by theBoard of Directors and Audi-
tors.
 
Further, The Auditors’ Report is unmodified i.e., it does not contain any qualifica�on, reserva-
�on or adverse remark.

REPORTING OF FRAUD
There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory 
Auditors to report under Sec�on 143(12) of the Act and the Rules made thereunder.

COST AUDIT AND COST RECORDS 
We are aware of the poten�al applicability of cost audit requirements and will ensure the 
�melyappointment of a cost auditor if the need arises, in accordance with the Act.

SECRETARIAL AUDIT
As required under sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has obtained a 
secretarial audit report. 

Pursuant to provisions of sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed M/s. 
NKM & Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretary (Membership No. A54970 and C.P. No.: 
20414) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure-III” to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifica�on, 
reserva�on and adverse remark.

Further A cer�ficate has been issued by M/s. NKM & Associates., Company Secretaries in prac-
�ce, confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or con�nuing as director by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The cer�ficate is annexed as 
“Annexure – IV” to this Report.
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR:
As per Sec�on 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s. A D M S and 
Company, Chartered Accountants., as an internal auditor for the year 2023-24 to conduct the 
internal audit and to ensure adequacy of the Internal controls, adherence to Company’s policies 
and ensure statutory and other compliance through periodical checks and internal audit.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with the applicable SS-1 (Secretarial Standard on Mee�ngs of the 
Board of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs) issued by the Ins�tute 
of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Sec�on 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND EQUITY SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
Pursuant to Sec�on 124 of the Act read with the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund 
Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund Rules), 2016 (‘the IEPF Rules’), during the 
year under review, no amount of Unclaimed dividend and corresponding equity shares were 
due to be transferred to IEPF account. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The Company has policies and procedures in place for 
ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven-
�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng
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SECRETARIAL AUDIT
As required under sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 the Company has obtained a 
secretarial audit report. 

Pursuant to provisions of sec�on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies (Appoint-
ment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 the company has appointed M/s. 
NKM & Associates, Prac�cing Company Secretary (Membership No. A54970 and C.P. No.: 
20414) to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial year 2023-24. The 
Secretarial Audit report for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 is annexed herewith as 
“Annexure-III” to this report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualifica�on, 
reserva�on and adverse remark.

Further A cer�ficate has been issued by M/s. NKM & Associates., Company Secretaries in prac-
�ce, confirming that none of the Directors of the Company have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or con�nuing as director by the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The cer�ficate is annexed as 
“Annexure – IV” to this Report.
 
INTERNAL AUDITOR:
As per Sec�on 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed M/s. A D M S and 
Company, Chartered Accountants., as an internal auditor for the year 2023-24 to conduct the 
internal audit and to ensure adequacy of the Internal controls, adherence to Company’s policies 
and ensure statutory and other compliance through periodical checks and internal audit.

SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
The Company has complied with the applicable SS-1 (Secretarial Standard on Mee�ngs of the 
Board of Directors) and SS-2 (Secretarial Standard on General Mee�ngs) issued by the Ins�tute 
of Company Secretaries of India and approved by the Central Government under Sec�on 
118(10) of the Companies Act, 2013.

TRANSFER OF UNCLAIMED DIVIDEND AND EQUITY SHARES TO INVESTOR EDUCATION AND 
PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
Pursuant to Sec�on 124 of the Act read with the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund 
Authority (Accoun�ng, Audit, Transfer and Refund Rules), 2016 (‘the IEPF Rules’), during the 
year under review, no amount of Unclaimed dividend and corresponding equity shares were 
due to be transferred to IEPF account. 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The Company has policies and procedures in place for 
ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven-
�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng

 records and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on. The Company has adopted 
accoun�ng policies, which are in line with the Accoun�ng Standards and the Act.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The Company has policies and procedures in place for 
ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven-
�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on. The Company has adopted 
accoun�ng policies, which are in line with the Accoun�ng Standards and the Act

RISK MANAGEMENT
During the financial year under review, the Company has iden�fied and evaluates elements of 
business risk. Consequently, a Business Risk Management framework is in place. The risk man-
agement framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes 
periodic review of such risks and also documenta�on, mi�ga�ng controls and repor�ng mecha-
nism of such risks. The framework has different risk models which help in iden�fying risks trend, 
exposure and poten�al impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for business.
 
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY
The Company has always believed in providing a conducive work environment devoid of 
discrimina�on and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has a well formulat-
ed Policy on Preven�on and Redressal of Sexual Harassment. The objec�ve of the Policy is to 
prohibit, prevent and address issues of sexual harassment at the workplace. This Policy has 
striven to prescribe a code of conduct for the employees and all employees have access to the 
Policy document and are required to strictly abide by it. The Policy covers all employees, irre-
spec�ve of their nature of employment and is also applicable in respect of all allega�ons of 
sexual harassment made by an outsider against an employee.
 
The Company has duly cons�tuted an Internal Complaints Commi�ee in line with the provisions 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year 2023-24, no case of Sexual Harassment was 
reported.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Your Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of its busi-
ness. It seeks to operate its business in a sustainable manner that benefits society at large and 
aligns with the interests of its stakeholders. In accordance with sec�on 135 and Schedule VII of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has cons�tuted a CSR Commi�ee.

The CSR Commi�ee has developed a CSR Policy, which has been uploaded to the company's 
website at www.deepakchemtex.in
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 records and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on. The Company has adopted 
accoun�ng policies, which are in line with the Accoun�ng Standards and the Act.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL AND THEIR ADEQUACY
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls commensurate with the size, 
scale and complexity of its opera�ons. The Company has policies and procedures in place for 
ensuring proper and efficient conduct of its business, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven-
�on and detec�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng 
records and the �mely prepara�on of reliable financial informa�on. The Company has adopted 
accoun�ng policies, which are in line with the Accoun�ng Standards and the Act

RISK MANAGEMENT
During the financial year under review, the Company has iden�fied and evaluates elements of 
business risk. Consequently, a Business Risk Management framework is in place. The risk man-
agement framework defines the risk management approach of the Company and includes 
periodic review of such risks and also documenta�on, mi�ga�ng controls and repor�ng mecha-
nism of such risks. The framework has different risk models which help in iden�fying risks trend, 
exposure and poten�al impact analysis at a Company level as also separately for business.
 
PREVENTION OF SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY
The Company has always believed in providing a conducive work environment devoid of 
discrimina�on and harassment including sexual harassment. The Company has a well formulat-
ed Policy on Preven�on and Redressal of Sexual Harassment. The objec�ve of the Policy is to 
prohibit, prevent and address issues of sexual harassment at the workplace. This Policy has 
striven to prescribe a code of conduct for the employees and all employees have access to the 
Policy document and are required to strictly abide by it. The Policy covers all employees, irre-
spec�ve of their nature of employment and is also applicable in respect of all allega�ons of 
sexual harassment made by an outsider against an employee.
 
The Company has duly cons�tuted an Internal Complaints Commi�ee in line with the provisions 
of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven�on, Prohibi�on and Redressal) Act, 
2013 and the Rules thereunder. During the year 2023-24, no case of Sexual Harassment was 
reported.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)
Your Company believes that Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of its busi-
ness. It seeks to operate its business in a sustainable manner that benefits society at large and 
aligns with the interests of its stakeholders. In accordance with sec�on 135 and Schedule VII of 
the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors has cons�tuted a CSR Commi�ee.

The CSR Commi�ee has developed a CSR Policy, which has been uploaded to the company's 
website at www.deepakchemtex.in

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY
Your Company is commi�ed to ensure sound Safety, Health and Environmental (SHE) perfor-
mance related to its ac�vi�es, products and services. Your Company is taking con�nuous steps 
to develop Safer Process Technologies and Unit Opera�ons and has been inves�ng heavily in 
areas such as Process Automa�on for increased safety and reduc�on of human error element. 

The Company is commi�ed to con�nuously take further steps to provide a safe and healthy 
environment.

38.

The commi�ee's composi�on and the mee�ngs held during the year are as follows: 

Terms of Reference
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee has the following mandate:

1. To formulate and recommend to the board a corporate social responsibility policy that speci-
fies the ac�vi�es to be undertaken by the company in accordance with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act and the rules made there under. The commi�ee may also suggest revisions to 
the policy as decided by the board.
2. To iden�fy partners and programs for corporate social responsibility ini�a�ves.
3. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be allocated for corporate social responsibility 
ac�vi�es and to distribute the funds among various programs undertaken by the company.
4. To delegate responsibili�es to the corporate social responsibility team and oversee the 
proper execu�on of all delegated tasks.
5. To review and monitor the implementa�on of corporate social responsibility programs, 
providing necessary direc�ons for their proper execu�on and �mely comple�on.
6. To perform any other du�es and func�ons as required by the board to promote the compa-
ny's corporate social responsibility ac�vi�es, and to exercise any addi�onal powers conferred 
upon the CSR Commi�ee under the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act.
 
The annual report on CSR including a brief outline of the CSR Policy and the ac�vi�es undertak-
en during the year under review is enclosed as “Annexure V” to this Report.

Name of the Member Category Posi�on Mee�ngs 
Held A�ended 

Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora Managing Director Chairperson 1 1 
Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent Director Member 1 1 
Mrs. Trishla Baid Whole Time Director Member 1 1 
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CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS 
AND OUTGO

Details required to be furnished pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 are 
asunder:  

Conserva�on of Energy: The range of ac�vi�es of the Company requires minimal energy con-
sump�on and every endeavor has been made to ensure op�mal u�liza�on of energy and avoid 
wastage through automa�on and deployment of energy-efficient equipment. The Company 
takes adequate measures to reduce energy consump�on by using efficient computer terminals 
and by using latest technology. The impact of these efforts has enhanced energy efficiency. As 
energy cost forms a very small part of total expenses, the financial impact of these measures is 
not material and measured.

Technology Absorp�on: Company is commi�ed towards technology driven innova�on and lays 
strong emphasis in inculca�ng driven culture within the organiza�on.

The Company has best of opera�ng machines and highly precisions equipment for produc�on 
and quality management also the Company has hired the op�mal of quality team who dedicates 
their full enthusiasm and work �relessly for delivering best quality and services. The team along 
with state-of-the-art quality equipment's as necessary for the Machine Shop.

The Company is all well equipped with its current quality control machine and will modify itself 
for any future advancement

The transac�ons involving foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the period under review 
is as follows:
Foreign Exchange Income: Rs. 2282.34 Lakhs
Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. 303.41 Lakhs

PUBLIC DEPOSITS
The Company has not accepted or renews any deposits, within the meaning of Sec�on 73 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
The informa�on required under sec�on 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 (1), (2) 
& (3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 
in respect of employees of the Company are given in “Annexure – VI and VII” to this report.

39.

40.

41.

Terms of Reference
 
The Corporate Social Responsibility Commi�ee has the following mandate:

1. To formulate and recommend to the board a corporate social responsibility policy that speci-
fies the ac�vi�es to be undertaken by the company in accordance with Schedule VII of the 
Companies Act and the rules made there under. The commi�ee may also suggest revisions to 
the policy as decided by the board.
2. To iden�fy partners and programs for corporate social responsibility ini�a�ves.
3. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be allocated for corporate social responsibility 
ac�vi�es and to distribute the funds among various programs undertaken by the company.
4. To delegate responsibili�es to the corporate social responsibility team and oversee the 
proper execu�on of all delegated tasks.
5. To review and monitor the implementa�on of corporate social responsibility programs, 
providing necessary direc�ons for their proper execu�on and �mely comple�on.
6. To perform any other du�es and func�ons as required by the board to promote the compa-
ny's corporate social responsibility ac�vi�es, and to exercise any addi�onal powers conferred 
upon the CSR Commi�ee under the provisions of Sec�on 135 of the Companies Act.
 
The annual report on CSR including a brief outline of the CSR Policy and the ac�vi�es undertak-
en during the year under review is enclosed as “Annexure V” to this Report.
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42. BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORT
The Business Responsibility Repor�ng as required under SEBI (LODR), 2015 and is not applicable 
to your Company for the financial year under review.

43. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year 23-24 as s�pulated under SEBI (LODR), 
Regula�ons, 2015 has annexed as “Annexure – VIII” of this Report.

44. LISTING WITH STOCK EXCHANGE
The Company confirms that it has not defaulted in paying the Annual Lis�ng Fees for the finan-
cial year 2023-24 to the BSE Limited where the shares of the Company are listed

45. DISCLOSURE OF AGREEMENTS 
Disclosure as required under para-F of Schedule V of SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015, are not applicable to the Company during the financial year.

46. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in this Report, Management Discussion and Analysis, no�ce to the Shareholders or 
elsewhere in this Annual Report, describing the Company’s objec�ves, projec�ons, es�mates 
and expecta�ons may cons�tute ‘forward looking statement’ within the meaning of applicable 
laws and regula�ons. Actual results might differ materially from those either expressed or 
implied in the statement depending on the Market condi�ons and circumstances.

47. RESIDUAL DISCLOSURES

1.During the year under review no applica�on was made and no proceedings were pending 
against the company under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (31 of 2016).

2. During the year under review there was no One Time se�lement with any bank or Financial 
Ins�tu�on.

48. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT AND APPRECIATION
Your directors would like to acknowledge and place on record their sincere apprecia�on to all 
Stakeholders, Clients, Financial Ins�tu�ons, Banks, Central and State Governments, the Compa-
ny’s valued Investors and all other Business Partners, for their con�nued co-opera�on and 
support extended during the year.

Your Directors recognize and appreciate the efforts and hard work of all the employees of the 
Company and their con�nued contribu�on to promote its development.
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Deepak Chemtex Limited

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Dated: August 29, 2024

Sd/-
Saurabh Deepak Aror
Chairman &Managing Director
DIN: 00404150

Sd/-
Trishla Baid Arora
Whole-�me Director
DIN:07063446
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ANNEXURE-I
Form AOC-I

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 129 read with rule 5 of Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of
Subsidiaries/associate companies/joint ventures

Part “A”: Subsidiaries
(Informa�on in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Lakhs.)

Notes: The following informa�on shall be furnished at the end of the statement: 
1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence opera�ons – Not Applicable
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. – Not Applicable.

Sr. 
no. 

Par�culars Details 

1.  Name of the subsidiary    DCPL Speciality 

Chemicals Private 

Limited 

South West 

Corpora�on 

2.  The Date since when subsidiary was 

acquired 

13.07.2021 13.04.2023 

3.  Repor�ng period for the subsidiary 

concerned, if different from the 

holding company’s repor�ng period 

NA Yes 

4.  Share capital(including Preference 

Share Capital) 

10.00 0.83 

5.  Reserves & surplus -47.34 25.01 

6.  Total assets 551.64 297.87 

7.  Total Liabili�es 588.98 272.03 

8.  Investments - - 

9.  Turnover 224.25 274.62 

10.  Profit before taxa�on -42.64 23.87 

11.  Provision for taxa�on -44.30 0.00 

12.  Profit a�er taxa�on -44.30 23.87 

13.  Proposed Dividend - - 

14.  Extent of shareholding(in 

percentage)% of shareholding 

90% 100% 
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ANNEXURE-II
ANNEXURES TO BOARDS’ REPORT

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-sec�on (3) of sec�on 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

The details of transac�ons entered with the related par�es in form AOC-2 in terms of the provision of 
sec�on 188(1) including certain arm’s length transac�ons:

A: Details of contract or arrangement or transac�ons not at arms’ length basis: Nil
B: Transac�ons with related par�es

Par�culars  Mr.Saurabh 
Arora  

Mrs.Trishla 
Baid Arora
  

Mr.Rajesh 
Kalikaprasad 
Tiwari  

DCPL 
Speciality 
Chemicals 
Private 
Limited 

South west 
Corpora�on 

Speciality 
Colours & 
Chemicals LLP 

Remunera�on 12.00 12.00 12.67 NA NA NA 

Sales - - - 205.22 389.19 0.38 

Purchase - - - 76.02 - - 

Total 12.00 12.00 12.67 281.22 389.19 0.38 

Amount (in Lakhs)
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ANNEXURE-III
Form No. MR.3

Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024
[Pursuant to Sec�on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rule 9 of the Companies (Appoint-

ment and remunera�on of managerial personnel) Rule, 2014]

To,
The Members 
DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED
[CIN: U24110PN1997PLC211935]
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote, 
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra-415722.

I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adher-
ence to good corporate prac�ces by Deepak Chemtex Limited (hereina�er called the “Company”). Secre-
tarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua�ng the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on my verifica�on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and 
other records maintained by the Company, the informa�on provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorised representa�ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, the explana�ons and clarifica�ons 
given to me and the representa�ons made by the Management.

I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company during the audit period covering the financial year ended 
on March 31, 2024 has generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that 
the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the 
manner and subject to the repor�ng made hereina�er:

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 according to the provisions of:
I. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made there-under;
II. The Securi�es Contracts (Regula�on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the Rules made there-under;
III. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula�ons and bye-laws framed there-under;
IV. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regula�ons made there-under to the 
extent applicable.
V. The following Regula�ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi�es and Exchange Board of India 
Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) to the extent applicable to the Company; 

   (a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Substan�al Acquisi�on of Shares and Takeovers) Regula-
�ons, 2011;
   (b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi�on of Insider Trading) Regula�ons, 2015;
   (c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula-
�ons, 2018, and 
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VI. The Management has Iden�fied and confirmed the following laws as specifically applicable to the 
Company:

a. Factory Act 1948 and Rules made therein
b. Sec�on 9 of Indian Boilers Act, 1923
c. The Legal Metology Act, 2009 & The Maharashtra Legal Metrology
d. Basic Chemicals, Cosme�cs & Dyes Export Promo�on Council
e. Consent under sec�on25 of the Water (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act-1974, under sec�on-21 
of the Air (Preven�on and Control of Pollu�on) Act-1981 and under rule 6(2) of the Hazardous and Other 
Wastes (Management and Transboundary Movement) Rules2016, framed under the Environmental 
(Protec�on) Act, 1986.
f. The Foreign Trade (Development and Regula�on) Act, 1992

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following;
(a) Secretarial Standards issued by the Ins�tute of Company Secretaries of India related to the mee�ngs 
of Board of Directors and Shareholders;
(b) The SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�on and Disclosure Requirement) Regula�on, 2015 

I have relied on the representa�on made by the Company and its Officers for systems and mechanism 
formed by the Company and test verifica�on on random basis carried out for compliances under other 
applicable Acts, Laws and Regula�ons to the Company.

The compliance by the Company of the applicable direct tax laws, indirect tax laws and other financial 
laws has not been reviewed in this Audit, since the same have been subject to review by the other desig-
nated professionals and being relied on the reports given by such designated professionals.

During the audit period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, rules, 
regula�ons, guidelines, standards etc. as men�oned above.

During the audit period under review, provisions of the following regula�ons were not applicable to the 
Company; 
(a) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Delis�ng of Equity Shares) Regula�ons, 2009; 
(b) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi�es) Regula�ons, 2018;
(c) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis�ng of Non-Conver�ble Securi�es) Regula-
�ons, 2021;
(d) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 
2018, and 
(e) The Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regula-
�ons, 1993 dealing with client
(f) Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regula�ons, 
2021
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I further report that:

• The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons�tuted with proper balance of Execu�ve Directors, 
Non-Execu�ve Directors and Independent Directors. There changes in the composi�on of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were in compliances of the applicable provi-
sions.
• Adequate no�ce is given to all the Directors to schedule the Board Mee�ngs, agenda and detailed notes 
on agenda were sent in advance there was no formal system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
informa�on and clarifica�ons on the agenda items before the mee�ng for meaningful par�cipa�on at the 
Mee�ng.
• Decisions at the mee�ngs of Board of Directors of the Company and Commi�ee thereof were carried 
out with requisite majority.
• The Company has completed its Ini�al Public Offer (“IPO”) of 28,80,000 Equity Shares of face value of 
10/- each at an issue price of Rs. 80/- aggrega�ng to Rs. 23,04,00,000/- (Rupees Twenty-Three Crores 
Four Lakh only).The Equity Shares got listed on SME Emerge Pla�orm of BSE on December 06, 2023.
• The Company has sub-divided the shares resul�ng into change of face value of the Company from Rs. 
100/- per share to Rs. 10/- per share vide its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on June 10, 2023.  
• The Company hasIncreased the authorized share capital of the Company from Rs. 50,00,000/- to Rs. 
11,00,00,000/- at its Extra Ordinary General Mee�ng held on July 28, 2023.  
• The Company has issued and allo�ed Bonus Shares on August 09, 2023 in the ra�o of 15:1 during the 
financial year 2023-24.

I further report that based on the informa�on provided and representa�on made by the Company and 
also on the review of compliance reports of the respec�ve department duly signed by the department 
head and Compliance Cer�ficate(s) of the Managing Director/Company Secretary/CFO taken on record by 
the Board of Directors of the Company, in our opinion  system and process exists in the company required 
to be strengthen to commensurate with the size and opera�ons of the Company to monitor and ensure 
compliance with the applicable laws, rules, regula�ons and guidelines. 

I further report that during the audit period the Company no events occurred which had bearing on the 
Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regula�ons, guidelines, standards etc.

For N K M & Associates
[Company Secretary]
[Firm Registra�on No. I2018MH1812700]

Sd/-
Nikita Kedia
Proprietor
Membership No: A54970
CP No.: 20414
Peer review no. 2470/2022
Place: Thane 
Dated: August 29, 2024

UDIN: A054970F001059853

Note: This report is to be read with our le�er of even date which is 
annexed as “Annexure A” and forms an integral part of this report.Page 49



Sd/-
Nikita Kedia
Proprietor
Membership No: A54970
CP No.: 20414
Peer review no. 2470/2022
Place: Thane 
Dated: August 29, 2024

UDIN: A054970F001059853

To,
The Members 
DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED
[CIN: U24110PN1997PLC211935]
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote, 
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra-415722.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this le�er;

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit;
2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and prac�ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion;
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company;
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representa�on about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regula�on and happening of events etc.;
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedure on test 
basis;
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N K M & Associates
[Company Secretary]
[Firm Registra�on No. I2018MH1812700]

Sd/-
Nikita Kedia
Proprietor
Membership No: A54970
CP No.: 20414
Peer review no. 2470/2022

Place: Thane 

Dated: August 29, 2024

UDIN: A054970F001059853

Annexure – “A”
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To,
The Members 
DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED
[CIN: U24110PN1997PLC211935]
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote, 
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra-415722.

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this le�er;

1. Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 
responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit;
2. We have followed the audit prac�ces and the processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 
assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verifica�on was done on 
test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes 
and prac�ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion;
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of 
the Company;
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management Representa�on about the compliance of 
laws, rules and regula�on and happening of events etc.;
5. The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula�ons, standards 
is the responsibility of management. Our examina�on was limited to the verifica�on of procedure on test 
basis;
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 
efficacy or effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For N K M & Associates
[Company Secretary]
[Firm Registra�on No. I2018MH1812700]

Sd/-
Nikita Kedia
Proprietor
Membership No: A54970
CP No.: 20414
Peer review no. 2470/2022

Place: Thane 

Dated: August 29, 2024

UDIN: A054970F001059853

ANNEXURE-IV
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS

(Pursuant to Regula�on 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015)

To,
The Members 
DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED 
[CIN: U24110PN1997PLC211935] 
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote, 
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra-415722.

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Direc-
tors of Deepak Chemtex Limited (hereina�er referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before me by the 
Company for the purpose of issuing this Cer�ficate, in accordance with Regula�on 34(3) read with Sched-
ule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securi�es Exchange Board of India (Lis�ng Obliga�ons and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regula�ons, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the verifica�ons (including Directors 
Iden�fica�on Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explana-
�ons furnished to me by the Company and its officers, I hereby cer�fy that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company as stated below for the financial year ended on March 31, 2024 have been 
debarred or disqualified from being appointed or con�nuing as Directors of companies by the Securi�es 
and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority.

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/con�nuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibil-
ity of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 
verifica�on. 
This cer�ficate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 
effec�veness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

DIN Full Name Designa�on Date of 
Appointment 

00404150 Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora Chairman & Managing Director 10/06/1997 
07063446 Mrs. Trishla Baid Arora CFO &Whole Time Director  20/01/2014 
07238431 Mr. Rajesh Kalikaprasad Tiwari Execu�ve Director 30/11/2021 
06414420 Mr. Narendra Kumar Baid Non-Execu�ve Director 28/07/2023 
10198794 Mr. Gautam Lath Independent Director 28/07/2023 
08455451 Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent Director 28/07/2023 
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For N K M & Associates
[Company Secretary]
[Firm Registra�on No. I2018MH1812700]

Sd/-
Nikita Kedia
Proprietor
Membership No: A54970
CP No.: 20414
Peer review no. 2470/2022

Place: Thane
Date: August 29, 2024

UDIN: A054970F001059864
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ANNEXURE-V
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR

[Pursuant to Sec�on 134(3)(o) of the Act and Rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibili-
ty) Rules, 2014]

1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
The CSR policy has been ins�tuted based on the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) philosophy of Com-
pany and is commi�ed to undertake CSR ac�vi�es in accordance with the CSR Regula�ons. The company 
conducts its business in a sustainable and socially responsible manner. This principle has been an integral 
part of the Company’s corporate values and believe that corporate growth and development should be 
inclusive, and every Company must be responsible and shall contribute towards the be�erment of soci-
ety. The company is commi�ed to the safety and health of the employees, protec�ng the environment 
and the quality of life in all regions in which the Company operates. Further, with respect to the Compa-
ny’s CSR philosophy, the Board has cons�tuted the “CSR Commi�ee” as its core CSR team, as a means of 
fulfilling this commitment.

The CSR ac�vi�es of the Company are as per the provisions of Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 
and CSR Policy gives an overview of the projects and programs which are proposed to be undertaken by 
the Company in the coming years.

2. The Composi�on of the CSR Commi�ee:

3. Web-link where Composi�on of CSR commi�ee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the board 
are disclosed on the website of the Company:
a) CSR Commi�ee: www.deepakchemtex.in
b) CSR Policy: www.deepakchemtex.in
c) CSR projects approved by the Board: www.deepakchemtex.in

Details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8 of the 
Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (a�ach the report):
Not Applicable

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Nature of 
Directorship 

Designation Number of 
meetings of CSR 
Committee held 
during the year 

Number of 
meetings 
of CSR 
Committee 
attended 
during the 
year 

1 Mr. Saurabh 
Deepak Arora 

Managing Director Chairperson 1 1 

2 Mrs. Pinki Kedia Independent 
Director 

Member 1 1 

3 Mrs. Trishla Baid Whole Time 
Director 

Member 1 1 
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4. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial 
year, if any

5. Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years as per sec�on 135(5):

6. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):

7. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
(a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year: Not Applicable

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: 
(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

Sl. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in lacs) 

Amount required to be set-off 
for the financial year, if any (in 
lacs) 

1 2020-21 Nil Nil 
2 2021-22 Nil Nil 
3 2022-23 Nil Nil 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Amount (in 
Lacs) 

1 FY 2022-23 820.02 
2 FY 2021-22 566.54 
3 FY 2020-21 370.34 
Average net profit of the Company for last three financial year 585.63 

Sl. 
No. 

Particulars Amount (in ` 
Lacs) 

a Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% Average net profit of the 
Company for last three financial year as per section 135(5)) 

11.71 

b Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programs or 
activities of the previous financial years 

0.00 

c Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any 0.00 
d Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c) 11.71  

Total 
Amount 
Spent 

Amount Unspent (in ` Lacs) 
Total Amount transferred to Unspent CSR 
Account as per section 135(6). 

Amount transferred to any fund specified 
under Schedule 
VII as per second proviso to section 135(5). 

 Amount Date of transfer Name of the 
Fund 

Amount Date of 
transfer 

 Nil     
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1. (a)   Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Nil
 (b)Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial 
year(s): NIL

2.    In case of crea�on or acquisi�on of capital asset, furnish the details rela�ng to the asset so created 
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year:

(d) Amount spent in Administra�ve Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e): 

Excess amount for set off if any

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)     (7) (8) 
S. 
No. 

Name of the 
Project 

Item from the 
list of activities 
in schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location 
of the 
project. 

Amount 
spent 
for the 
project 

(in ` Lacs) 

Mode of 
implementat
ion- 

Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of 
implementation- 
Through 
implementing 
agency. 

State District Name CSR 
registrat
ion 
number 

1. SMSHMC 
Project 

Education and  
Medical   

Yes Mahara
shtra 

 Ratnagiri 11.71 Yes - - 

Sl. 
No. 

Particular Amount (in `Lacs) 

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per section 135(5) 11.71 
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 11.71 
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] Nil 
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of 

the previous financial years, if any 
Nil 

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] Nil 
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There was no crea�on or acquisi�on of capital assets through CSR spent in the financial year.
Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per 
sec�on 135(5): NA

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Deepak Chemtex Limited

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Dated: August 29, 2024

Sd/-
Saurabh Deepak Aror
Chairman &Managing Director
DIN: 00404150

Sd/-
Trishla Baid Arora
Whole-�me Director
DIN:07063446
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ANNEXURE-VI

Statement of Disclosure of Remunera�on under Sec�on 197 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(1) of 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

i. Ra�o of the remunera�on of each Execu�ve Director to the median remunera�on of the Employees of 
the Company for the financial year 2023–2024.

ii. The percentage increase in remunera�on of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Execu�ve 
Officer and Company Secretary or manager during the financial year 2023 – 2024.

*Ms. Sonam Sharma was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer w.e.f. September 20, 
2023

iii) The Company has 33 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024.

iv) Rela�onship between average increase in remunera�on and Company’s performance:
 
As compared to Company’s increase in performance, increase in remunera�on is reasonable considering 
present market scenario and also considering reduc�on in remunera�on in respect of surplus staff.

v) Comparison of the remunera�on of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
Company:

Sr. 
No. 

Name of the Director Designation Ratio of remuneration of 
each Director to median 

remuneration of 
employees 

1. Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora Managing Director 11.44 
2. Mrs. Trishla Baid  Whole-time Director 11.44 
3. Mr. Rajesh Kalikaprasad Tiwari Executive Director 12.08 

Sr. 
No. 

Name Designation % increase in 
remuneration 

1. Mr. Saurabh Deepak Arora Managing Director 16.70% 
2. Mrs. Trishla Baid  Whole-time Director& CFO 0.46% 
3. Mr. Rajesh Kalikaprasad Tiwari Executive Director -10.74% 
4. Ms. Sonam Sharma* Company Secretary NA 

Sr. 
No. 

Particulars 2023 –24 
(Rs. In lakhs)  

2022 –23 
(Rs. In lakhs) 

% increase/ 
(decrease) 

1 Sales / Revenue 5040.41 4670.29 7.92% 
2 Profit before tax 885.24 820.02 7.95% 
3 Remuneration of the KMP 36.67 36.42 0.68% 
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*Ms. Sonam Sharma was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer w.e.f. September 20, 
2023

iii) The Company has 33 permanent employees on the rolls of Company as on March 31, 2024.

iv) Rela�onship between average increase in remunera�on and Company’s performance:
 
As compared to Company’s increase in performance, increase in remunera�on is reasonable considering 
present market scenario and also considering reduc�on in remunera�on in respect of surplus staff.

v) Comparison of the remunera�on of the Key Managerial Personnel against the performance of the 
Company:

vi) Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
financial year is 3.61% whereas the increase in the managerial remunera�on was 0.67%.

viii)The key parameter for any variable component of remunera�on availed by Managing Directors: Not 
applicable being there is no variable component is paid to Managing Director.

ix)The ra�o of the remunera�on of the highest paid Director to that of the Employees who are not Direc-
tors but receive remunera�on in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: Not Applicable.
 
There are no employees of the Company who receive remunera�on in excess of the highest paid Director 
of the Company.

xi) It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on paid during the year is as per the Remunera�on Policy of 
the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Deepak Chemtex Limited

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Dated: August 29, 2024

Sd/-
Saurabh Deepak Aror
Chairman &Managing Director
DIN: 00404150

Sd/-
Trishla Baid Arora
Whole-�me Director
DIN:07063446

Page 58



vi) Average percentage increase in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel in the 
financial year is 3.61% whereas the increase in the managerial remunera�on was 0.67%.

viii)The key parameter for any variable component of remunera�on availed by Managing Directors: Not 
applicable being there is no variable component is paid to Managing Director.

ix)The ra�o of the remunera�on of the highest paid Director to that of the Employees who are not Direc-
tors but receive remunera�on in excess of the highest paid Director during the year: Not Applicable.
 
There are no employees of the Company who receive remunera�on in excess of the highest paid Director 
of the Company.

xi) It is hereby affirmed that the remunera�on paid during the year is as per the Remunera�on Policy of 
the Company.

ANNEXURE-VII

Details of employees pursuant to Sec�on 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) & (3) of the 
Companies (Appointment and Remunera�on of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014. – 
Not Applicable as no employees or managerial personnel draw salary equal to or exceeding Rs.102,00,000 
p.a. or Rs.8,50,000 per month

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Deepak Chemtex Limited

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Dated: August 29, 2024

Sd/-
Saurabh Deepak Aror
Chairman &Managing Director
DIN: 00404150

Sd/-
Trishla Baid Arora
Whole-�me Director
DIN:07063446
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ANNEXURE-VIII

OVERVIEW OF BUSINESS:
We are primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of colorants finding its applica�on in Food, 
Drug, Cosme�cs, Cleaning compounds, Agriculture and other industries. Colorants are formula�ons of 
chemical intermediates, pigments or dyes and addi�ves used to add colour to various consumables. We 
commenced our business in 1997 and have over the years evolved into manufacturing of a complete 
range of FD&C (Food, Drug and Cosme�c) colours used in the confec�onary, bakery, desserts, beverages, 
dairy products, seasonings, pet foods, pharmaceu�cal products, cosme�cs & personal care products. We 
also manufacture salt free dyes used in inkjet industry, pond dyes used in in ponds, lakes, swimming pools 
etc and other colorants used in car wash products, portable sanita�on cleaners, detergent & soap, fuel, 
oil & lubricants, smoke, seed treatment, crop protec�on, fer�lizer indicators, floral dyes etc.

Our manufacturing facility is situated at Ratnagiri District in Maharashtra and is equipped with glass lined 
reactors, boilers and stainless steel equipments and gets audited on a regular basis by our clients. We use 
various produc�on processes like: Sulphona�on, Condensa�on, Bromina�on, Oxida�on, Reduc�on, High 
pressure reac�ons, Purifica�on etc which enables us to cater to niche and advanced requirements of a 
wider range of end-products and applica�ons. We manufacture colorants from unwanted salts and 
isomers.

We are expor�ng to countries like: China, France, Kenya, Mexico, Europe, Japan, Australia, United King-
dom, United States of America etc. We have successfully expanded our commercialized product por�olio 
from around 50 products in Fiscal 2021 to around 100 products in Fiscal 2023. The revenue from top 10 
products of the company for the stub period ended on September 30, 2023 and Fiscal 2023, Fiscal 2022 
and Fiscal 2021 were Rs 1650.73 lakhs, Rs 3,747.56 lakhs, Rs 4,489.66 lakhs and Rs 2,688.89 lakhs which 
contributed to 75.92%, 80.24%, 82.97% and 90.97% of our total revenue from opera�ons. We have a 
diverse base of Indian and global customers who some�mes secure EN 71(European Standard) cer�fica-
�on for our products.

OVERVIEW OF THE INDUSTRY:
Covering more than 80,000 commercial products, India’s chemical industry is extremely diversified and 
can be broadly classified into bulk chemicals, specialty chemicals, agrochemicals, petrochemicals, poly-
mers, and fer�lisers. India is the 6th largest producer of chemicals in the world and 3rd in Asia, contribut-
ing 7% to India’s GDP. India's chemical sector, which is currently es�mated to be worth US$ 220 billion in 
2022 and is an�cipated to grow to US$ 300 billion by 2025
and US$ 1 trillion by 2040.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
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OPERATING RESULTS OF THE COMPANY 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Standalone total revenue is Rs. 5,158.65lakhs as 
compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.72 lakhs in the previous year. The Standalone profit before tax stood at 
Rs. 885.24lakhs as against profit of Rs. 820.02lakhs in the previous year. TheStandalone net profit for the 
year 2024 stood at Rs. 663.39 lakhs against profit of Rs. 614.71lakhs reported in the previous year.
 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Consolidated total revenue is Rs. 5,053.68 lakhs 
as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Consolidated profit before tax 
stood at Rs. 821.03lakhs as against profit of Rs. 817.28lakhs in the previous year. TheConsolidated net 
profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 597.28lakhs against profit of Rs. 611.97lakhs reported in the previous 
year.

STRENGTH
• We offer a wide range of products with ability to customize.
• Long standing rela�onships with diversified customers across geographies
• In-house manufacturing facility with equipped machines and processes
• Focus on Quality, Environment, Health and Safety
• Stable and consistent financial performance
• Experienced Promoters and Senior Management with extensive domain knowledge

BUSINESS STRATEGIES
• Con�nue to focus on manufacturing by expanding our product por�olio.
• Con�nue to reduce opera�ng costs and improve opera�onal efficiencies
• Con�nue to strengthen our presence in India and expand our sales and distribu�on network in interna-
�onal market
• Con�nue to focus on our manufacturing capabili�es.

COMPETITION
Our compe��on varies by market, geographic areas and type of product. As a result, to remain compe�-
�ve in our markets, we must con�nuously strive to reduce our costs of produc�on, transporta�on and 
distribu�on and improve our opera�ng efficiencies. There are various large and small manufactures that 
develop similar products that we sell. These players in the industry may have greater financial resources, 
technology, greater market penetra�on and opera�ons in diversified geographies and product por�olios, 
which may allow them to be�er respond to market and technological trends.

PROSPECT & OUTLOOK
The management is of the view that the future prospects of your Company are bright and the perfor-
mance in the current year is expected to be very well. The commi�ed customers of the Company are 
expected to place more orders, which ul�mately affect the top line of the Company, posi�vely.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
The Company has taken adequate preven�ve and precau�onary measures to overcome all nega�ve 
factors responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth.
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OPERATING RESULTS OF THE COMPANY 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Standalone total revenue is Rs. 5,158.65lakhs as 
compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.72 lakhs in the previous year. The Standalone profit before tax stood at 
Rs. 885.24lakhs as against profit of Rs. 820.02lakhs in the previous year. TheStandalone net profit for the 
year 2024 stood at Rs. 663.39 lakhs against profit of Rs. 614.71lakhs reported in the previous year.
 
During the financial year ended on March 31, 2024, the Consolidated total revenue is Rs. 5,053.68 lakhs 
as compared to revenue of Rs. 4,783.73 lakhs in the previous year. The Consolidated profit before tax 
stood at Rs. 821.03lakhs as against profit of Rs. 817.28lakhs in the previous year. TheConsolidated net 
profit for the year 2024 stood at Rs. 597.28lakhs against profit of Rs. 611.97lakhs reported in the previous 
year.

STRENGTH
• We offer a wide range of products with ability to customize.
• Long standing rela�onships with diversified customers across geographies
• In-house manufacturing facility with equipped machines and processes
• Focus on Quality, Environment, Health and Safety
• Stable and consistent financial performance
• Experienced Promoters and Senior Management with extensive domain knowledge

BUSINESS STRATEGIES
• Con�nue to focus on manufacturing by expanding our product por�olio.
• Con�nue to reduce opera�ng costs and improve opera�onal efficiencies
• Con�nue to strengthen our presence in India and expand our sales and distribu�on network in interna-
�onal market
• Con�nue to focus on our manufacturing capabili�es.

COMPETITION
Our compe��on varies by market, geographic areas and type of product. As a result, to remain compe�-
�ve in our markets, we must con�nuously strive to reduce our costs of produc�on, transporta�on and 
distribu�on and improve our opera�ng efficiencies. There are various large and small manufactures that 
develop similar products that we sell. These players in the industry may have greater financial resources, 
technology, greater market penetra�on and opera�ons in diversified geographies and product por�olios, 
which may allow them to be�er respond to market and technological trends.

PROSPECT & OUTLOOK
The management is of the view that the future prospects of your Company are bright and the perfor-
mance in the current year is expected to be very well. The commi�ed customers of the Company are 
expected to place more orders, which ul�mately affect the top line of the Company, posi�vely.

RISKS AND CONCERNS
The Company has taken adequate preven�ve and precau�onary measures to overcome all nega�ve 
factors responsible for low trend to ensure steady growth.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY
There are well-established procedures for Internal Controls for opera�ons of the Company. The finance & 
audit func�ons are well equipped with professionally experienced qualified personnel & play important 
roles in implemen�ng the statutory obliga�ons. The Company has cons�tuted Audit Commi�ee for guid-
ance and proper control of affairs of the Company.

HUMAN RESOURCES
Human Resources Development, in all its aspects like training in safety and social values is under constant 
focus of the management. Rela�ons between the management & the employees at all levels remained 
healthy & cordial throughout the year. The Management and the employees are dedicated to achieve the 
corporate objec�ves and the targets set before the company.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT
Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s objec�ves, expecta-
�ons, predic�ons and assump�ons may be “FORWARD LOOKING” within the meaning of applicable Laws 
and Regula�ons. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed herein, important factors that 
could influence the Company’s opera�ons include domes�c economic Condi�ons affec�ng demand, 
supply, price condi�ons, and change in Government’s regula�ons, tax regimes, other statutes and other 
factors such as industrial rela�ons.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of Deepak Chemtex Limited

Registered Office:
Aawashi, 28/1A, A/P Adgul Aawashi, Lote,
Ratnagiri, Maharashtra, India, 415722

Place: Ratnagiri
Dated: August 29, 2024

Sd/-
Saurabh Deepak Aror
Chairman &Managing Director
DIN: 00404150

Sd/-
Trishla Baid Arora
Whole-�me Director
DIN:07063446
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To The Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED (formerly known as DEEPAK CHEMTEX PRIVATE LIMITED)

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements:

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED (“the 
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss, the 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significant accoun�ng 
policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the afore-
said Standalone financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Accoun�ng Standards 
prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India, of the 
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, the profit and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Audi�ng specified under sec�on 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibili�es under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independence requirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Ma�ers
Key audit ma�ers are those ma�ers that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in the 
audit of the Standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024. These ma�ers were 
addressed in the context of our audit of the Standalone financial statements as a whole and in forming 
our opinion thereon and we do not provide a separate opinion on these ma�ers. We have determined 
that there are no key audit ma�ers to communicate in our report.

Informa�on Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

STANDALONE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
FY 2023-24

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and 
Shareholder’s Informa�on, but does not include the Standalone financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.
Our opinion on the Standalone financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connec�on with our audit of the Standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
informa�on and, in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with the 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be 
materially misstated.
If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to the prepara�on of these Standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial posi�on, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Account-
ing Standards and other accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes 
maintenance of adequate accoun�ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguard-
ing the assets of the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on 
and applica�on of appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�mates that are reasonable 
and prudent; and design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that 
were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, rele-
vant to the prepara�on and presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the Standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compa-
ny’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.
The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggre-
gate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these Standalone financial statements.

Page 64



As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

1. 
Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

2. 
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsi-
ble for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

3. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and related disclosures made by management.

4. 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we con-
clude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a 
going concern.

5. 
Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the Standalone financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter-
nal control that we iden�fy during our audit.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skep�cism throughout the audit. We also:

1. 
Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than for one resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.

2. 
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsi-
ble for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.

3. 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and related disclosures made by management.

4. 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
�ons that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we con-
clude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a 
going concern.

5. 
Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the Standalone financial statements, including 
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transac�ons and events in 
a manner that achieves fair presenta�on.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone financial statements that, individually or 
in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
Standalone financial statements may be influenced. We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve 
factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evalua�ng the results of our work; and (ii) to 
evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in the Standalone financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in inter-
nal control that we iden�fy during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other 
ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on 
precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. 
As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) 
We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) 
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examina�on of those books.
c) 
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
d) 
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e) 
On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.
f) 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng.
g) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the require-
ments of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the remu-
nera�on paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 of the Act.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other 
ma�ers that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit ma�ers. We describe these ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regula�on 
precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. 
As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) 
We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) 
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examina�on of those books.
c) 
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account.
d) 
In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accoun�ng Standards specified under 
Sec�on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
e) 
On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.
f) 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 
and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng.
g) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the require-
ments of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the remu-
nera�on paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 of the Act.

h) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our informa-
�on and according to the explana�ons given to us :
i. 
The Company does not have any pending li�ga�ons which would impact its financial posi�on.
ii. 
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts; as such the ques�on of 
commen�ng on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. 
There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any sums 
to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund.
iv. 
(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Benefi-
ciaries;
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 
or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to their no�ce that has caused them to believe that the representa�ons under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.
v.  
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

2. 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Govern-
ment in terms of Sec�on 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the ma�ers specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.
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h) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our informa-
�on and according to the explana�ons given to us :
i. 
The Company does not have any pending li�ga�ons which would impact its financial posi�on.
ii. 
The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts; as such the ques�on of 
commen�ng on any material foreseeable losses thereon does not arise.

iii. 
There has not been an occasion in case of the Company during the year under report to transfer any sums 
to the Investor Educa�on and Protec�on Fund.
iv. 
(a) The management has represented that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any 
other person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend 
or invest in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company 
(“Ul�mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Benefi-
ciaries;
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 
or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to their no�ce that has caused them to believe that the representa�ons under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) contain any material mis-statement.
v.  
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

2. 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Govern-
ment in terms of Sec�on 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure B” a statement on the ma�ers specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045W

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabra

Partner
Membership number: 611401
UDIN: 24611401BKCKWY4162

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2024
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our 
report to the Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED of even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of 
Sec�on 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED 
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2024 in conjunc�on with our audit of the Standalone financial state-
ments of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company consid-
ering the essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finan-
cial Controls over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial con-
trols that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includ-
ing adherence to respec�ve company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec-
�on of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepa-
ra�on of reliable financial informa�on, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 
Company based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of 
Chartered Accountants of India and the Standards on Audi�ng prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards 
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial report-
ing was established and maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ng included obtaining an understanding of internal financial con-
trols over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and tes�ng and evaluat-
ing the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstate-
ment of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng of the Company.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng
A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng principles. A company’s internal 
financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the 
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transac�ons and dispo-
si�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transac�ons are recorded as 
necessary to permit prepara�on of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accoun�ng 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authoriza�ons of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorized acquisi�on, use, or disposi�on of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Repor�ng
Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial 
controls over financial repor�ng to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial repor�ng may become inadequate because of changes in condi�ons, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng and 
such internal financial controls over financial repor�ng were opera�ng effec�vely as at March 31, 2024, 
based on the internal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company considering the 
essen�al components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Con-
trols Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India.
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For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045W

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabra

Partner
Membership number: 611401
UDIN: 24611401BKCKWY4162

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2024
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our 
report to the Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED of even date)

1) 
In case of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment’s and Intangible Assets:

(a) 
1. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has maintained proper 
records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of fixed assets;

2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

(b) 
The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, a por�on of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and 
no material discrepancies between the book’s records and the physical fixed assets have been no�ced.

(c) 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records examined by us and based on 
the examina�on of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the �tle deeds, comprising all 
the immovable proper�es of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company 
as at the balance sheet date.

(d) 
The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the 
year.

(e) 
No proceedings have been ini�ated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 
2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as amend-
ed in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2) 
The Company does not have any inventory and no working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at 
any point of �me during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of securi-
ty of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable.
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Annexure “B” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our 
report to the Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED of even date)

1) 
In case of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment’s and Intangible Assets:

(a) 
1. According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has maintained proper 
records showing full par�culars, including quan�ta�ve details and situa�on of fixed assets;

2. The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars of intangible assets.

(b) 
The Fixed Assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased manner which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and nature of its assets. Pursuant to the 
program, a por�on of the fixed asset has been physically verified by the management during the year and 
no material discrepancies between the book’s records and the physical fixed assets have been no�ced.

(c) 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records examined by us and based on 
the examina�on of the registered sale deed provided to us, we report that, the �tle deeds, comprising all 
the immovable proper�es of land and buildings which are freehold, are held in the name of the Company 
as at the balance sheet date.

(d) 
The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and intangible assets during the 
year.

(e) 
No proceedings have been ini�ated during the year or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 
2024 for holding any benami property under the Benami Transac�ons (Prohibi�on) Act, 1988 (as amend-
ed in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

2) 
The Company does not have any inventory and no working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees (at 
any point of �me during the year), in aggregate, from banks or financial ins�tu�ons on the basis of securi-
ty of current assets. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable.

3) 
During the year the Company has not provided any guarantee or Security, but made investment, provided 
loans or advances in natures of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partner-
ships or other par�es:

(a) 
(1) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any other en�ty:

(2) In our opinion and according to the informa�on provided to us the company has made investments 
and provided guarantees and granted unsecured loans or advances in the nature of loans as specified 
below:

(b) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, 
security given and the terms and condi�ons of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest
(c) 
schedule of repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have not been s�pulated 
and hence we are unable to comment as to whether receipt of the principal amount and the interest is 
regular;
(d) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, no amount is overdue in this respect;
(e) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, in respect of any loan or advance in the nature 
of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, none has been renewed or extended or fresh loans 
granted to se�le the overdue of exis�ng loans given to the same par�es;

To Whom The Aggregate amountduring 
the year 

Balance outstanding at the balance 
sheet date 

Parties other than subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates 

- - 

subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates 

458.01 Lakhs 538.23 Lakhs 

TOTAL 458.01 Lakhs 538.23 Lakhs 

To Whom Company Name Investment amount in INR(In Lakhs):- 

Parties other than subsidiaries, joint 
ventures and associates 

  

subsidiaries, joint ventures and 
associates 

South West Corporation 0.82 Lakhs 

TOTAL  0.82 Lakhs 



3) 
During the year the Company has not provided any guarantee or Security, but made investment, provided 
loans or advances in natures of loans, secured or unsecured to Companies, firms, Limited Liability Partner-
ships or other par�es:

(a) 
(1) During the year the company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood 
guarantee, or provided security to any other en�ty:

(b) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the investments made, guarantees provided, 
security given and the terms and condi�ons of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 
and guarantees provided are not prejudicial to the company’s interest
(c) 
schedule of repayment of the principal amount and the payment of the interest have not been s�pulated 
and hence we are unable to comment as to whether receipt of the principal amount and the interest is 
regular;
(d) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, no amount is overdue in this respect;
(e) 
According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, in respect of any loan or advance in the nature 
of loan granted which has fallen due during the year, none has been renewed or extended or fresh loans 
granted to se�le the overdue of exis�ng loans given to the same par�es;
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(f) 
The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or with-
out specifying any terms or period of repayment, required details in respect thereof are as below:

4) 
In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has complied 
with the provisions of Sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees, and security.

5) 
The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 
March 31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

6) 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost 
records under sub-sec�on (1) of Sec�on 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

7) 
(a) According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the 
books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular in deposi�ng undisputed statuto-
ry dues including Income-Tax, Goods and Services Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to 
it with the appropriate authori�es.

(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on 
when they become payable.

(c) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and 
Services Tax, duty of customs outstanding on account of any dispute.

 All Parties Promoters Related parties 
Aggregate amount of loans/ advances in nature of loans 
- Repayable on demand (A) 
 
-Agreement does not specify any terms or period of 
repayment (B) 

 
- 
 

458.01 Lakhs 

 
- 
 
- 

 
 
 

458.01 Lakhs 

Total (A+B) 458.01 Lakhs - 458.01 Lakhs 
Percentage of loans/advances in nature of loans to the total 
loans 

100 %  
- 

100% 
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8) 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no transac�ons in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the 
books of account.

9) 
(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year;
(b) Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or other lender;
(c) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained;
(d) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, funds raised on short term basis have not 
been u�lized for long term purposes;
(e) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the company has not taken any funds from 
any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ven-
tures;
(f) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

10) 
(a) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, money raised by way of 
ini�al public offer were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.
 
(b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has u�lized 
funds raised by way of preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or conver�ble debentures 
(fully, par�ally or op�onally conver�ble) for the purposes for which they were raised.

11) 
(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the man-
agement, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
been no�ced or reported during the year.
(b)   No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report.
(c)   The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year (and upto the date of 
this report).

12) 
In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.

(f) 
The company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or with-
out specifying any terms or period of repayment, required details in respect thereof are as below:

4) 
In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has complied 
with the provisions of Sec�on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 In respect of loans, investments, 
guarantees, and security.

5) 
The Company has not accepted deposits during the year and does not have any unclaimed deposits as at 
March 31, 2024 and therefore, the provisions of the clause 3 (v) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

6) 
To the best of our knowledge and belief, the Central Government has not specified maintenance of cost 
records under sub-sec�on (1) of Sec�on 148 of the Act, in respect of Company’s products/ services. 
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable.

7) 
(a) According to informa�on and explana�ons given to us and on the basis of our examina�on of the 
books of account, and records, the Company has generally been regular in deposi�ng undisputed statuto-
ry dues including Income-Tax, Goods and Services Tax and any other material statutory dues applicable to 
it with the appropriate authori�es.

(b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
of the above were in arrears as at March 31, 2024 for a period of more than six months from the date on 
when they become payable.

(c) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Goods and 
Services Tax, duty of customs outstanding on account of any dispute.



8) 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and the records of the Company examined by 
us, there are no transac�ons in the books of account that has been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the 
books of account.

9) 
(a) In our opinion, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the 
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year;
(b) Company is not declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial ins�tu�on or other lender;
(c) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for 
which the loans were obtained;
(d) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, funds raised on short term basis have not 
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(e) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the company has not taken any funds from 
any en�ty or person on account of or to meet the obliga�ons of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ven-
tures;
(f) According to the informa�on and explana�on given to us, the company has not raised loans during the 
year on the pledge of securi�es held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies;

10) 
(a) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, money raised by way of 
ini�al public offer were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.
 
(b) In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the company has u�lized 
funds raised by way of preferen�al allotment or private placement of shares or conver�ble debentures 
(fully, par�ally or op�onally conver�ble) for the purposes for which they were raised.

11) 
(a) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the man-
agement, we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has 
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(b)   No report under sub-sec�on (12) of sec�on 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4 
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government, 
during the year and upto the date of this report.
(c)   The company has not received any whistle blower complaints during the year (and upto the date of 
this report).

12) 
In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3 (xii) of the 
Order are not applicable to the Company.
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13) 
In our opinion, all transac�ons with the related par�es are in compliance with sec�on 177 and 188 of 
Companies Act, 2013 and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Financial Statements as 
required by the applicable accoun�ng standards.

14) 
We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company �ll date for the period 
under audit.

15) 
Based upon the audit procedures performed and the informa�on and explana�ons given by the manage-
ment, the company has not entered into any non-cash transac�ons with directors or persons connected 
with him. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (xv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company and 
hence not commented upon.

16) 
(a)   In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under sec�on 45-IA of the Reserve Bank 
of IndiaAct, 1934. Hence, repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable.
(b) The Company has not conducted non-banking financial / housing finance ac�vi�es during the year. 
Accordingly, the repor�ng under Clause 3(xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(c)  The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regula�ons made by the 
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the repor�ng under Clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.
(d)  In our opinion, there is no core investment company within the Group (as defined in the Core Invest-
ment Companies (Reserve Bank) Direc�ons, 2016) and accordingly repor�ng under clause 3(xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

17) 
The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by our audit and the immedi-
ately preceding financial year.

18) 
There has been no resigna�on of the statutory auditors during the year hence the clause is not applicable.

19) 
On the basis of the financial ra�os, ageing and expected dates of realiza�on of financial assets and pay-
ment of financial liabili�es, other informa�on accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge 
of the Board of Directors and Management plans and based on our examina�on of the evidence support-
ing the assump�ons, nothing has come to our a�en�on, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indica�ng that Company is not capable of mee�ng its 
liabili�es exis�ng at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from 
the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the 
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Company. We further state that our repor�ng is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and 
we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabili�es falling due within a period of one year 
from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

20) 
According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company does not have any unspent 
amount in respect of any ongoing or other than ongoing project as at the expiry of the financial year. 
Accordingly, repor�ng under clause 3(xx) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

21) 
The repor�ng under Clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of Standalone financial 
statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in this report.

For ADV & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045W

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabra

Partner
Membership number: 611401
UDIN: 24611401BKCKWY4162

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30/05/2024
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Deepak Chemtex Limited Accoun�ng Policy for Standalone

1. Basis of Prepara�on of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accoun�ng Standards 
no�fied under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts Rules), 
2014 under historical cost conven�on on accrual basis. All the assets and liabili�es have been classified as 
current or non-current as per Company’s normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set out in the Sched-
ule-III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of ac�vi�es, the Company has ascertained its 
opera�ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classifica�on of assets and 
liabili�es. 

2. Use of Es�mates
The prepara�on of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accoun�ng Principles) which requires the management to make es�mates and assump�ons that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosures of con�ngent liabili�es as on the date of the 
financial statements. The es�mates and assump�ons made and applied in preparing the financial state-
ments are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and ac�ons as on the date of 
financial statements. However, due to uncertain�es a�ached to the assump�ons and es�mates made 
actual results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is recognised pro-
spec�vely in current and future periods.

3. Basis of Accoun�ng
Deepak Chemtex Limited follows the accrual basis of accoun�ng, recognizing transac�ons when they 
occur rather than when cash is received or paid, in accordance with AS 1, Disclosure of Accoun�ng Poli-
cies. This approach ensures a more accurate representa�on of the company’s financial posi�on and 
performance.

4. Revenue Recogni�on
Revenue is recognized following AS 9, Revenue Recogni�on, and AS 18, Related Party Disclosures. Reve-
nue is recognized when:
• The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer.
• The amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transac�on will flow to the company. 
Revenue from the sale of colorants is recognized 
• at the point of dispatch to customers, net of discounts, returns, and allowances.

5. Inventory Valua�on
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value as per AS 2, Valua�on of Inventories. 
The cost of inventory includes:
• Raw materials
• Direct labour
• Manufacturing overhead
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Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method. Inventories are reviewed periodically to 
iden�fy and write down any obsolete or slow-moving items to their net realizable value.

6. Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) are recorded at historical cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, in accordance with AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment. Deprecia�on is calculated 
on a straight-line basis over the es�mated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives are reviewed annually 
and adjusted if necessary.

7. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, such as patents and trademarks, are ini�ally recognized at cost as per AS 26, Intangible 
Assets. They are amor�zed over their es�mated useful lives. The useful life and residual value of intangi-
ble assets are reviewed annually.

8. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are ini�ally recognized at invoice value. An allowance for doub�ul debts is estab-
lished based on historical collec�on pa�erns and current economic condi�ons, as per AS 3, Cash Flow 
Statements. Receivables are reviewed regularly for poten�al impairment.

9. Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are recognized at the amount invoiced by suppliers. They are recorded at fair value and 
se�led in accordance with the agreed payment terms. Any discounts received are recorded as a reduc�on 
in expense.

10. Foreign Currency Transac�ons
Foreign currency transac�ons are recorded at the exchange rate on the transac�on date, in accordance 
with AS 11, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. At each repor�ng date, foreign currency 
monetary items are translated at the closing rate, with exchange differences recognized in profit or loss.

11. Taxa�on
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax as per AS 22, Income Taxes. The income tax 
expense includes:

• Current Tax: Based on taxable income for the period, adjusted for any differences between accoun�ng 
profit and taxable profit.
• Deferred Tax: Reflects temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabili�es and 
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are recognized using the tax rates expected to apply 
when the asset is realized or the liability is se�led. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be u�lized.
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12. Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are accounted for in accordance with AS 16, Borrowing Costs. The treatment of borrow-
ing costs is as follows:

• Capitaliza�on: Borrowing costs that are directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on, or produc-
�on of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is one that 
takes a substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use or sale.
• Expense: All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

13. Employees Benefits
The Employee Benefits is accounted for as follows:

• Recogni�on: Gratuity is a defined benefit plan as per AS 15, Employee Benefits. The company provides 
for gratuity based on an actuarial valua�on performed annually.
• Actuarial Valua�on:
o 
The actuarial valua�on is carried out using the projected unit credit method, which involves es�ma�ng 
the future gratuity payments based on employees' current salaries, years of service, and expected rate of 
salary increases.
o 
The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined using the discount rate that reflects the 
�me value of money and is based on market yields on government bonds.
• Expenses:
o 
The cost of providing gratuity is recognized as an employee benefit expense in the profit and loss account. 
This includes current service cost, interest cost on the defined benefit obliga�on, and actuarial gains and 
losses.
o 
Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit 
or loss in subsequent periods.
• Disclosures:
o 
The financial statements disclose the amounts recognized in the financial statements, including the total 
expense recognized for gratuity, the principal assump�ons used in the actuarial valua�on, and the recon-
cilia�on of the opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obliga�on.

14. Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es & Con�ngent Assets

Provisions for con�ngent liabili�es are accounted for as follows:
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Provisions for con�ngent liabili�es are accounted for as follows:
• Recogni�on: A provision is recognized when:
o   The company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past event.
o   It is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the 
     obliga�on.
o   A reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on, in accordance with AS 29, Provisions, 
Con�ngent Liabili�es, and Con�ngent Assets.

• Con�ngent Liabili�es:
o   Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed, but not recognized, in the financial statements. These are poten�al 
o  bliga�ons that arise from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
     non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company.
o Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an ou�low of 
    resources is remote.

• Con�ngent Assets:
o   Con�ngent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed when an inflow of 
      economic benefits is probable.

15. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are accounted for as follows:

• 
Defini�on: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, and short-term, 
highly liquid investments that are readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash and are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value, as per AS 3, Cash Flow Statements.
• 
Recogni�on and Measurement:
o  Cash and cash equivalents are ini�ally recognized at cost.
o  They are measured at face value or amor�zed cost, where appropriate, and reported on the balance 
    sheet under current assets.
• 
Cash Flow Statements:
o  The company prepares a cash flow statement to provide informa�on about the cash inflows and 
ou�lows from opera�ng, inves�ng, and financing ac�vi�es. This statement is presented using the indirect 
method, adjus�ng net profit or loss for the effects of non-cash transac�ons and changes in working capi-
tal.
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16. Earnings Per Share 
• 
The earnings in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit a�er tax a�ributable to equity 
shareholders and includes the post-tax effect of any extraordinary items. The number of shares used in 
compu�ng basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) a�er tax a�ributable to Equity Shareholders 
(including the post-tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income rela�ng to the dilu�ve poten�al equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity 
shares. Poten�al equity shares are deemed to be dilu�ve only if their conversion to equity shares would 
decrease the net profit per share from con�nuing ordinary opera�ons. Poten�al dilu�ve equity shares are 
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 
Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are determined independently for each period.

17. Investments 
a) In Foreign Subsidiaries
Investments in foreign subsidiaries are accounted for as follows:
• Ini�al Recogni�on: Investments in foreign subsidiaries are ini�ally recognized at cost, which includes the 
purchase price and any directly a�ributable costs, in accordance with AS 13, Accoun�ng for Investments.
• Subsequent Measurement:
* These investments are carried at cost less any impairment losses. The cost of investments includes the 
amount paid for acquisi�on and any costs directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on.
* The carrying amount of these investments is adjusted for any foreign currency transla�on differences, 
as required by AS 11, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates.
• Foreign Currency Transla�on:
* The financial statements of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Indian Rupees for consolida�on 
purposes. Assets and liabili�es are translated at the closing rate, while income and expenses are translat-
ed at the average rate for the period.
* Exchange differences arising from the transla�on of foreign subsidiary financial statements are recog-
nized in other comprehensive income and are accumulated in a separate component of equity un�l the 
disposal of the subsidiary.
• Dividends: Dividends received from wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries are recognized as income in the 
period they are declared.
• Impairment: The Company assesses its investments in wholly-owned foreign subsidiaries for impair-
ment whenever there is an indica�on that the investment may be impaired. An impairment loss is recog-
nized if the carrying amount of the investment exceeds its recoverable amount.
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• Disclosures:
* The financial statements disclose the nature of the rela�onship with the foreign subsidiaries, the nature 
and extent of significant restric�ons on the ability of the subsidiary to transfer funds to the 
* parent in the form of cash dividends or repaying loans, and the parent’s interest in the foreign subsidiar-
ies.
* Addi�onal disclosures include the amount of any foreign exchange differences recognized in other 
comprehensive income and a summary of the financial posi�on and results of opera�ons of the foreign 
subsidiaries.

b)In Indian Subsidiaries
Recogni�on
• Investments in other subsidiaries are recognized at cost.
Measurement
• Ini�al Measurement: At cost, which includes the purchase price and any directly a�ributable costs.
• Subsequent Measurement: Investments are accounted for using the cost method or equity method:
*  Cost Method: Recorded at cost and not subsequently adjusted.
*  Equity Method: Adjusted for the parent’s share of the subsidiary’s profit or loss, and other comprehen-
sive income.
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To The Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED 
(“the Group”), which comprise theBalance Sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, and a summary of the significantac-
coun�ng policies and other explanatory informa�on (hereina�er referred to as “the consolidated financial 
statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the afore-
said consolidated financial statements give the informa�on required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the 
Act”) in the manner so required and givea true and fair view in conformity with theAccoun�ng Standards 
(AS) prescribed under sec�on 133 of the Act and other accoun�ng principles generallyaccepted in India, 
of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2024, and its profit and other its cash flows for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on 
Audi�ng specified undersec�on 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibili�es under those Standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibili�esfor the Audit of the consolidated Financial Statements 
sec�on of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordancewith the Code of Ethics issued 
by the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the independencerequirements 
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the provisions of the Act and 
the Rulesmade thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibili�es in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’sCode of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ouraudit opinion on the consolidated financial state-
ments.

Informa�on Other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the prepara�on of the other informa�on. The other 
informa�on comprises the informa�on included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 
Report including Annexures to Board’s Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s Informa�on, but 
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other informa�on and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S
REPORT
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In connec�on with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 
other informa�on and,in doing so, consider whether the other informa�on is materially inconsistent with 
the consolidated financial statements or ourknowledge obtained during the course of our audit or other-
wise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
informa�on,we arerequired to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibility for the ConsolidatedFinancial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma�ers stated in sec�on 134(5) of the Act with 
respect to theprepara�on of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view of the 
financial posi�on, financial performance and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the IND- AS 
and otheraccoun�ng principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accoun�ng recordsin accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of 
the Company and for preven�ng and detec�ng frauds and other irregulari�es; selec�on and applica�on of 
appropriate accoun�ng policies; making judgments and es�matesthat are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, thatwere opera�ng 
effec�vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, relevant to the prepa-
ra�on and presenta�on of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from mate-
rial misstatement,whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidatedfinancial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Compa-
ny’s ability to con�nue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, ma�ers related to going concern and 
using the going concern basis of accoun�ng unless management either intends to liquidate the Company 
or to cease opera�ons, or has no realis�c alterna�ve but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial repor�ng process.

Auditor’s Responsibili�es for the Audit of the consolidatedFinancial Statements

Our objec�ves are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidatedfinancial statements as 
a whole are free frommaterial misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonableassurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individuallyor in the aggre-
gate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidatedfinancial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
scep�cism throughout the audit. We also:
• 
Iden�fy and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidatedfinancial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detec�ng a 
material misstatement resul�ng from fraud is higher than forone resul�ng from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, inten�onal omissions, misrepresenta�ons, or the override of internal control.
• 
Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit proce-
dures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under sec�on 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsi-
ble for expressing our opinion onwhether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in 
place and the opera�ng effec�veness of such controls.
• 
Evaluate the appropriateness of accoun�ng policies used and the reasonableness of accoun�ng es�mates 
and relateddisclosures made by management.
• 
Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accoun�ng and, 
based on the auditevidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or condi-
�ons that may cast significant doubt onthe Company’s ability to con�nue as a going concern. If we con-
clude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required todraw a�en�on in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the consolidatedfinancial statements or, if such disclosuresare inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of ouraudi-
tor’s report. However, future events or condi�ons may cause the Company to cease to con�nue as a 
going concern.

• 
Evaluate the overall presenta�on, structure and content of the consolidatedfinancial statements, includ-
ing the disclosures,and whether the consolidatedfinancial statements represent the underlying transac-
�ons and events in a manner that achievesfair presenta�on.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidatedfinancial statements that, individually 
or in aggregate, makesit probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the 
consolidatedfinancial statements may be influenced.
We consider quan�ta�ve materiality and qualita�ve factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evalua�ng theresults of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any iden�fied misstatements in 
the consolidatedfinancial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other ma�ers, the planned 
scope and �ming of theaudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we iden�fy during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirementsregarding independence, and to communicate with them all rela�onships and other 
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ma�ers that may reasonably be though�o bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.
From the ma�ers communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those ma�ers that 
were of most significancein the audit of the consolidatedfinancial statements of the current period and 
are therefore the key audit ma�ers. We describethese ma�ers in our auditor’s report unless law or regu-
la�on precludes public disclosure about the ma�er or when, in extremelyrare circumstances, we deter-
mine that a ma�er should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequencesof doing 
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communica�on.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1) As required by Sec�on 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
a) 
We have sought and obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons which to the best of our knowledge 
and beliefwere necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) 
In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appearsfrom our examina�on of those books.

c) 
The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this 
Report are in agreement with the relevant books of account. 

d) 
In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the AS as specified under 
Sec�on 133of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

e) 
On the basis of the wri�en representa�ons received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on 
record by theBoard of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being 
appointed as a directorin terms of Sec�on 164 (2) of the Act.

f) 
With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the Company 
and theopera�ng effec�veness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A”. Our report 
expresses anunmodified opinion on the adequacy and opera�ng effec�veness of the Company’s internal 
financial controls overfinancial repor�ng.

g) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the require-
ments of sec�on 197(16) of the Act, as amended
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In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the remu-
nera�on paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
sec�on 197 of the Act.

h) 
With respect to the other ma�ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 
Companies(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our informa-
�on and according tothe explana�ons given to us:

i) 
The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li�ga�ons on its financial posi�on in its consolidated 
financial statements.

ii) 
The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable law or accoun�ng standards, for 
materialforeseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts including deriva�ve contracts.

iii) 
There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Educa�on 
andProtec�on Fund by the Company.

iv) 
(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed 
funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other 
person(s) or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether 
recorded in wri�ng or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 
in other persons or en��es iden�fied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ul�-
mate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries;
(b) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as 
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) 
or en�ty(ies), including foreign en��es (“Funding Par�es”), with the understanding, whether recorded in 
wri�ng or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or en��es iden�fied in any mannerwhatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ul�mate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ul�mate Beneficiaries.
(c) Based on audit procedures which we considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to their no�ce that has caused them to believe that the representa�ons under 
sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) 
The company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year in contraven�on of the provisions of 
sec�on 123 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditor’s Report
(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ sec�on of our 
report to the Members of DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng under Clause (i) of Sub-sec�on 3 of 
Sec�on 143 of theCompanies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial 
controls based on theinternal control over financial repor�ng criteria established by the Company consid-
ering the essen�al components of internalcontrol stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Finan-
cial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tuteof Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibili�es include the design, implementa�on and maintenance of adequateinternal financial con-
trols that were opera�ng effec�vely for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, includ-
ingadherence to respec�ve company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the preven�on and detec-
�on of frauds and errors, theaccuracy and completeness of the accoun�ng records, and the �mely prepa-
ra�on of reliable financial informa�on, as requiredunder the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng of the 
Company basedon our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls OverFinancial Repor�ng (the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Ins�tute of Char-
tered Accountants of India and the Standards onAudi�ng prescribed under Sec�on 143(10) of the Compa-
nies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financialcontrols. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform theaudit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial repor�ng 
was establishedand maintained and if such controls operated effec�vely in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls systemover financial repor�ng and their opera�ng effec�veness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial repor�ngincluded obtaining an understanding of internal financial con-
trols over financial repor�ng, assessing the risk that a materialweakness exists, and tes�ng and evalua�ng 
the design and opera�ng effec�veness of internal control based on the assessed risk.

For ADV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045WS
 

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabara

Partner
Membership number: 611401
UDIN: 24611401BKCKXA9599

Mumbai
Date:- 30/05/2024
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The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement o�he consolidatedfinancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion onthe internal financial controls system over financial repor�ng of the Company.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng
A company’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regardingthe reliability of financial repor�ng and the prepara�on of consolidatedfinancial 
statements for external purposes in accordance withgenerally accepted accoun�ng principles. A compa-
ny’s internal financial control over financial repor�ng includes those policiesand procedures that (1) 
pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect thetransac-
�ons and disposi�ons of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance tha�ransac�ons are 
recorded asnecessary to permit prepara�on of consolidatedfinancial statements in accordance with 
generally accepted accoun�ng principles, and thatreceipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorisa�ons of management and directorsof the company; and (3) pro-
vide reasonable assurance regarding preven�on or �mely detec�on of unauthorised acquisi�on,use, or 
disposi�on of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the consolidatedfinancial state-
ments.

Limita�ons of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng
Because of the inherent limita�ons of internal financial controls over financial repor�ng, including the 
possibility of collusionor improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Also, projec�ons of any evalua�on of the internal financial controls over financial repor�ng to future 
periods are subject tothe risk that the internal financial control over financial repor�ng may become 
inadequate because of changes in condi�ons,or that the degree of compliance with the policies or proce-
dures may deteriorate.

Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to Consolidated financial statements of 
Deepak Chemtex Private Limited (“the Company”) as of 31stMarch 2024 in conjunc�on with our audit of 
the Consolidated financial statements of the Company as at and for the year ended on that date. In our 
opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
Consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were opera�ng effec�vely as at 31 
March 2023, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essen�al components of internal control stated in 
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Repor�ng issued by the Ins�tute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 

For ADV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045WS
 

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabara

Partner
Membership number: 611401
UDIN: 24611401BKCKXA9599
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Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on number: 128045WS
 

Sd/-
Pra�k Kabara

Partner
Membership number: 611401
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Mumbai
Date:- 30/05/2024



For ADV & ASSOCIATES
Chartered Accountants
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Sd/-
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UDIN: 24611401BKCKXA9599

Page 113

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENT
FY 2023-24



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117

1. Basis of Prepara�on of Financial Statements
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the applicable Accoun�ng Standards 
no�fied under Sec�on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of Companies (Accounts Rules), 
2014 under historical cost conven�on on accrual basis. All the assets and liabili�es have been classified as 
current or non-current as per Company’s normal opera�ng cycle and other criteria set out in the Sched-
ule-III to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of ac�vi�es, the Company has ascertained its 
opera�ng cycle as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classifica�on of assets and 
liabili�es. 

2. Use of Es�mates
The prepara�on of the financial statements is in conformity with Indian GAAP (Generally Accepted 
Accoun�ng Principles) which requires the management to make es�mates and assump�ons that affect 
the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es and disclosures of con�ngent liabili�es as on the date of the 
financial statements. The es�mates and assump�ons made and applied in preparing the financial state-
ments are based upon management’s best knowledge of current events and ac�ons as on the date of 
financial statements. However, due to uncertain�es a�ached to the assump�ons and es�mates made 
actual results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to accoun�ng es�mates is recognised pro-
spec�vely in current and future periods.

3. Basis of Accoun�ng
Deepak Chemtex Limited follows the accrual basis of accoun�ng, recognizing transac�ons when they 
occur rather than when cash is received or paid, in accordance with AS 1, Disclosure of Accoun�ng Poli-
cies. This approach ensures a more accurate representa�on of the company’s financial posi�on and 
performance.

4. Revenue Recogni�on
Revenue is recognized following AS 9, Revenue Recogni�on, and AS 18, Related Party Disclosures. Reve-
nue is recognized when:
• The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have been transferred to the buyer.
• The amount of revenue can be reliably measured.
• It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transac�on will flow to the company. 
Revenue from the sale of colorants is recognized 
• at the point of dispatch to customers, net of discounts, returns, and allowances.

5. Inventory Valua�on
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable value as per AS 2, Valua�on of Inventories. 
The cost of inventory includes:
• Raw materials
• Direct labour
• Manufacturing overhead

DEEPAK CHEMTEX LIMITED ACCOUNTING 
POLICY FOR CONSOLIDATION
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Cost is determined using the weighted average cost method. Inventories are reviewed periodically to 
iden�fy and write down any obsolete or slow-moving items to their net realizable value.

6. Property, Plant, and Equipment
Property, plant, and equipment (PPE) are recorded at historical cost less accumulated deprecia�on and 
impairment losses, in accordance with AS 10, Property, Plant and Equipment. Deprecia�on is calculated 
on a straight-line basis over the es�mated useful lives of the assets. The useful lives are reviewed annually 
and adjusted if necessary.

7. Intangible Assets
Intangible assets, such as patents and trademarks, are ini�ally recognized at cost as per AS 26, Intangible 
Assets. They are amor�zed over their es�mated useful lives. The useful life and residual value of intangi-
ble assets are reviewed annually.

8. Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are ini�ally recognized at invoice value. An allowance for doub�ul debts is estab-
lished based on historical collec�on pa�erns and current economic condi�ons, as per AS 3, Cash Flow 
Statements. Receivables are reviewed regularly for poten�al impairment.

9. Accounts Payable
Accounts payable are recognized at the amount invoiced by suppliers. They are recorded at fair value and 
se�led in accordance with the agreed payment terms. Any discounts received are recorded as a reduc�on 
in expense.

10. Foreign Currency Transac�ons
Foreign currency transac�ons are recorded at the exchange rate on the transac�on date, in accordance 
with AS 11, The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates. At each repor�ng date, foreign currency 
monetary items are translated at the closing rate, with exchange differences recognized in profit or loss.

11. Taxa�on
Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax as per AS 22, Income Taxes. The income tax 
expense includes:
• Current Tax: Based on taxable income for the period, adjusted for any differences between accoun�ng 
profit and taxable profit.
• Deferred Tax: Reflects temporary differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabili�es and 
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets and liabili�es are recognized using the tax rates expected to apply 
when the asset is realized or the liability is se�led. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it 
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the asset can be u�lized.
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12. Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are accounted for in accordance with AS 16, Borrowing Costs. The treatment of borrow-
ing costs is as follows:
• Capitaliza�on: Borrowing costs that are directly a�ributable to the acquisi�on, construc�on, or produc-
�on of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. A qualifying asset is one that 
takes a substan�al period of �me to get ready for its intended use or sale.
• Expense: All other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are 
incurred.

13. Employees Benefits
The Employee Benefits is accounted for as follows:
• Recogni�on: Gratuity is a defined benefit plan as per AS 15, Employee Benefits. The company provides 
for gratuity based on an actuarial valua�on performed annually.
• Actuarial Valua�on:
  * The actuarial valua�on is carried out using the projected unit credit method, which involves es�ma�ng 
the future gratuity payments based on employees' current salaries, years of service, and expected rate of 
salary increases.
  * The present value of the defined benefit obliga�on is determined using the discount rate that reflects 
the �me value of money and is based on market yields on government bonds.
• Expenses:
  * The cost of providing gratuity is recognized as an employee benefit expense in the profit and loss 
account. This includes current service cost, interest cost on the defined benefit obliga�on, and actuarial 
gains and losses.
  * Actuarial gains and losses are recognized in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to 
profit or loss in subsequent periods.
• Disclosures: 
  * The financial statements disclose the amounts recognized in the financial statements, including the 
total expense recognized for gratuity, the principal assump�ons used in the actuarial valua�on, and the 
reconcilia�on of the opening and closing balances of the defined benefit obliga�on.

14. Provisions, Con�ngent Liabili�es & Con�ngent Assets
Provisions for con�ngent liabili�es are accounted for as follows:
• Recogni�on: A provision is recognized when:
  * The company has a present obliga�on (legal or construc�ve) as a result of a past event.
  * It is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the 
obliga�on.
  * A reliable es�mate can be made of the amount of the obliga�on, in accordance with AS 29, Provisions, 
Con�ngent Liabili�es, and Con�ngent Assets.
• Con�ngent Liabili�es:
  * Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed, but not recognized, in the financial statements. These are poten�al 
obliga�ons that arise from past events whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or 
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the company.
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  * Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed in the financial statements unless the possibility of an ou�low of 
resources is remote.
• Con�ngent Assets:
  * Con�ngent assets are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed when an inflow of 
economic benefits is probable.

15. Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are accounted for as follows:
• Defini�on: Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits with banks, and 
short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily conver�ble into known amounts of cash and are 
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, as per AS 3, Cash Flow Statements.
• Recogni�on and Measurement:
  * Cash and cash equivalents are ini�ally recognized at cost.
  * They are measured at face value or amor�zed cost, where appropriate, and reported on the balance 
sheet under current assets.
• Cash Flow Statements:
  * The company prepares a cash flow statement to provide informa�on about the cash inflows and 
ou�lows from opera�ng, inves�ng, and financing ac�vi�es. This statement is presented using the indirect 
method, adjus�ng net profit or loss for the effects of non-cash transac�ons and changes in working capi-
tal.

16. Earnings Per Share 
• The earnings in ascertaining the Company’s EPS comprises the net profit a�er tax a�ributable to equity 
shareholders and includes the post-tax effect of any extraordinary items. The number of shares used in 
compu�ng basic EPS is the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. Diluted 
earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/(loss) a�er tax a�ributable to Equity Shareholders 
(including the post-tax effect of extra ordinary items, if any) as adjusted for dividend, interest and other 
charges to expense or income rela�ng to the dilu�ve poten�al equity shares, by the weighted average 
number of equity shares which could have been issued on conversion of all dilu�ve poten�al equity 
shares. Poten�al equity shares are deemed to be dilu�ve only if their conversion to equity shares would 
decrease the net profit per share from con�nuing ordinary opera�ons. Poten�al dilu�ve equity shares are 
deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued at a later date. 
Dilu�ve poten�al equity shares are determined independently for each period.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT
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